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ﬁerkﬁhire L.ocal School District

14259 CLARIDON-TROY ROAD

P.0. BOX 364 PHONE: 440-834-3380
BURTON OH 44021 B FAX: 440-834-2058

August 19,201

Board of Education Members
Berlsshire Local School District

We are pleased o submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Berkshire
Local School District {the “School District”™) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, This CAFR enables
the School District to comply with Ohio Administrative Code Section 117-2-03 (B), which requires
reporting on a GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) basis, and Ohio Revised Code Section
[17.38 which requires school districts reporting on a GAAP basis to file an annual report with the Auditor
of State within 150 days of the fiscal year end.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliabilily of the information contained
in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that has been established for this
purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatcments.

Under Ohio law, regular audits are required to be performed on all financial related operations of the
Schoal District. ‘These audits may be done by either the State Auditor’s Office or, if the State Auditor
permits, an independent public accounting firm. For fiscal year 201 1, the School District was audited by
the Auditor of State’s Office. Their unqualified opinion is included in the financial section of this CAFR.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the Independent Accountants’
Report and provides a narative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements, The
MD&A compiements this [etter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

The School District

The Berkshire Local School Distriet is located in castern Geaugn County and encompasses seventy (70)
square miles which includes Burton Village and the Townships of Burton, Claridon and Troy. The School
District operates under a locally-clected Board forin of government. This Board manages the School District's
four instructional/support facilities staffed by 56.5 non-certificated employees, 72 certificated full time
teaching personnel and 7 administrative employees to provide services to 1,083 students and other
community members,

The School District was established in June, 1967 and is organized uncler Article VI, Sections 2 and 3 of the
Constitution of the State of Ohio. Under these provisions, there is no authority for a school districl to have a
charter or adopt local laws. The legislative power of the School District is vested in the Board of Education,
consisting of five members elected at-large for staggered four year terms. Statutorily, the School Distriet
operates under standards prescribed by the Ohio State Board of Education as provided in division (D) of
Seetion 3301.07 of the Ohio Revised Code to provide services mandated by State and Federal agencies.
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The Berleshire Local School District provides a comprehensive array of educational programs and services to
students in two buildings:

o fRerkshire High School built in 1936, with additions in 1973 and 2002, houses 576 students from
grades 7 through 12.

o Burton Elementary School built in 1959, with an addition in 1962, and modular addition in 2009,
houses 507 students from grades kindergarten through 6.

The Burton Elementary School provides general and special education services to children ranging from
kindergarten through the sixth grade. The Berkshire Junjor Hligh/High School provides general, special
education and vocational education services to students ranging from the seventh grade through the twelfth
grade. Course offerings, supplemented by extra-curricular opporttnities, provide students with the skills
necessary to pursue post-high school cducational and career goals.

The School District’s cost-per-pupil is consistently among the lowest for Geauga County school districts.
The results of achievement, competency and proficiency testing continue to substanttate the effectiveness of
the teaching-learning process in the School District.

The annual budpget serves as the foundation for the Berlshire Local School District’s financial planning and
control. The legal level of control has been established by the Board of Education at fund level for all funds.
The Treasurer has been given authority to allocate board appropriations to the function and object levels
within each fund. Transfers between funds, however, need spectal approval from the Board.

Economic Condition and Outlook

The Berkshire Logal School District is noteworthy lor a variety of reasons. [t is rural and includes part of
the second largest Amish population in Ohio, yet it is an easy commute to Cleveland, a major
metropolitan center, The population contains a relatively high number of senior citizens, testimony to the
fact that the region is a safe, desirable place to live. Property values have remained steacdy despite the
unpredictable economy. Several businesses are located in the area such as Great Lakes Cheese Company,
Excell Polymers, LLC, Troy Manufacturing, Burton Floral and Garden, Preston Superstore, and TRC
Manufacturing.

Many smaller run service businesses are located throughout the School District community. Adding to a
strong small business base are construction, remodeling, plumbing, landscaping, door service, conerele,
paving, hardware, coin-operated laundromat, and water softener businesses owned by people of the
community. Professional service businesses such as insurance, attorneys’ offices, credit union, banks, and
accountants also contribute to the local economy. Many of these have been around for more than twenty
years. IKent State Geauga Campus has begun an expansion project to bring more class offerings to the
arca, Cwrently they offer associates degrees in arts and sciences, accounting technology, business
management lechnology, and computer technology along with baccalaureate degrees in business
management technology and general studies. The commereial base, though growing and changing, is still
rather small compared to inore densely populated areas and neighboring school districts,

The high school and elementary building are located in Burton Village, known for its historical
atimosphere — a place where history lives. Around the center of town and in the surrounding area are many
specialty shops that add to the charm of the Village and o the local economy. These include All Matters,
Inc., Beaches and Dreams Travel, Buckeye Chocolate Company, Burton County Village Antiques, Coffee



Corners Antiques, John’s Photography, Little Pond Graphic Productions, White House Chocolates,
Sweetbriar Surt Alpaca Farn, and Sunvise Farm Market. After a day of unique shopping, one can take in
a good meal at Toin and lerry’s, Belle’s Restaurant, or J.C’s Restaurant; all are within walking distance of
the square and the shops. One can end the day at the Red Maple Inn or the Goodwin Bed and Breakfast.

Burton is hest to Century Village. This museum is open year round sharing a part of history with over
twenty historically accurate buildings on sixty-five acres, 20,000 museum artifacts that depict a Western
Reserve Village from 1798 to 1900 and a working farm with a sugar bush maintained for maling maple
syrup. Many events and festivals are held bringing in thousands of visitors to the area each year including
music festivals, Civil War reenaciments and the Apple Butter Festival, The Great Geauga County Fair,
the oldest fair in Ohio, is held Labor Day weelend and shares the country atmosphere witlh over 100,000
visitors each year. Many events are real crowd pleasers such as the rooster flying contest hosted by Dick
Goddard, cow milking, the demolition derby, and the battle of the fire departments. Two large antique
fairs arc held on the fairgrounds every May and September, as are other events throughout the year
bringing in many visitors to the area and adding to the local economy.

School District Local Funding

The funding structure of public education in Ohio is such that school districts receive very little revenue
growth as a result of inflationary increases in their tax basc. This is a result of House Bill 920 which
mandates that any increases in asscssed real property values as a result of reappraisal result in a
corresponding decrease in millage rate. This keeps the tax receipts the same as when the levy was first
placed on the ballot. As a result, school districts throughout Ohio must place operating funding levies on
the ballot at regular intervals to keep pace with inflation and added programming,.

School District management will carcfully control expenses during the coming years to continue to assure
tax levy revenues are adequate and well spent. A one percent tax levy on earned income was approved by
voters in May of 2007, with collection beginning in 2008. This levy replaced the current .75 percent
income tax on all income. Because of cuts in State funding, reduced revenues from the phasing out of the
tangible personal property tax and increased costs in health care, bus fuel, and utilities, the Scheol District
was forced to return to the ballot for additional operating revenues. The earned income tax levy was the
best option for the School District as it has a history of not passing operating levies. The option to change
the current income tax levy to an carned income tax levy was just allowed in 2006 and the Board took
advantage of this option to continue needed funding for the School District.

During fiscal year 2011, the School District maintained a restrictive budget and monitored costs to end
the fiscal year with a conservative balance. The School District has continued to closely monitor
expenditures as a result of declining revenue and anticipated revenue losses in the coming years. Various
cost cutting measures including sharing transportation arrangements with other nearby districts when
feasible. These efforts were made to attempt to keep ahead of the rising cost of utilities and fuel and
building maintenance repairs. The School District is striving to maintain a quality education for ifs
students within a tight budget.

Relevant Financial Policies

The School District had enlisted the assistance of a professional demographer to develop enrollment
projections. Projections are developed assuning low, moderate and high growth rates in the School District.
As our previous scliool years are showing we are experiencing a slight decline in enrollment each year.
Enrollment for the 1997/98 school year was 1,370 students while the enrollment for the 2006-07 school year
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was 1,247, a decrease of 8.9 percent over the last ten years. According to this study, the student enrollment
projections for the 2013-14 school year are estimated at 950 students assuming a continued low growth with
declining enrollment.

Long-Term Planning

Annually, the School District prepares a five-year financial forecast in accordance with State law. The
financial forecast is the foundation for the School District’s operations and is used as a financial planning tool
to assist the School District in determining its ability to meet certain financial obligations and plan future
funding needs. The forecast shows revenues and expenditures for the general operating fund for the past three
fiscal years and projects revenues and expenditures for the ensuing five-ycar period. Through a collaborative
process, the administration assists the Board of Education in determining and prioritizing the needs of the
School District.

Major Initiatives
Strategic Planning/Long-term Financial Goals

The School District completed a consolidated contintous improvement plan for fiscal years 2006 through
2011. This is a form of strategic planning guiding the School District in all phases of operation. The
involvement of the general public and employees has broadened support for School District improvement
initiatives, The positive effects of the plan can be observed in the academic achievement of students and
tangible long-term improvements to programming and school facilitics.

For the future of the Schoal District, the Board needs to evaluate the current and future revenue sources
and expenditures and the needs of owr facilities, and review curriculum and staffing needs at all levels.
The Board is currently exploring the possibility of collaboration efforts with Ient State University,
Newbury Local Schools and Cardinal Local Schools. The Board wants to make sure the needs of the
School District are met with the lowest financial impact on the community.

Oliie Report Card

The Ohio Report Card is issued in February of each school year. The report uses data from the previous
school year to inform the public of School District success or failure in 26 indicators. On the 2010 report
card the School District met, or exceeded the Ohio standard in 22 of 26 indicators and also met AYP,
Adequate Yearly Progress in all arcas including subgroups. The School District was rated in the category
titlecl, “Excellent”,

No Child Left Behind Compliance

Unfunded federal mandates require additional extensive diagnostic and achicvement testing of stucents.
Berkshire Local School District has complied with such requirements. As such testing is introduced at
various grade levels, the School District is working with the assessment instruments provided by the State
of Ohio. In addition, Berkshire Local School District teachers are being measured by the No Child Left
Behind standard of “highly qualified™ in relationship to their teaching assignments.
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Federal Projecty

The School District files applications for federal funds clectronically utilizing the Consolidated Local
Plan. This allows the director to coordinate the application to the goals of the Continuous Improvement
Plan. The School District continues to apply for all federal funds for which the School District is eligible.
This includes the Improving Teacher Quality Grant allowing for additional leachers al the Elementary
School. The Title I Reading Recovery program improves the reading for eligible students in First Grade
at each of the elementary buildings. Student readiness for advancement in each grade has been the
primary focus of these services.

Educational Programs and Facilities Iimproventents

One of the most successful programs instituted in the last ten years is the all day every day kindergarten
program. The benefits of this program have moved the Board to consider other options for cost saving
measures instead of reverting back to the hall-day program. Given the lack of pre-schools in the aica, all
day programs for kindergarten become even inore important.

During the 2011 school year, the School District’s curriculum included a wide range of electives and
comprehensive courses of study in college preparatory, liberal arts and vocational programs. Advanced
placement courses are offered at the high school in Calculus and Chemistry. The high school offers over
180 courses on the main campus with over 50 additional vocational offerings at Auburn Career Center.

The graduating class of 2011 exceeded the State and national average scores on the American College
Test (ACT). The composite score of 22 on the ACT exceeded the State average of 21.8 and national
average of 21.  More than 70 percent of the high school graduates indicated they intended to continue
their education at the university or college level immediately after graduation. Many others are planning
to attend a vocational/trade school following graduation.

The School District regularly accesses the needs of the buildings and what facility improvements are
needed for that school year. Minor repaurs and updates have been made during the current year while
looking to the major needs and planning for those projects in the near future. The Facilities Comnittee
has spent much time reviewing the needs, priovitizing them and planning a schedule of completion.

Awards
GFOA Certificate of Aclievement

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Berkshire Local School District for
its comprebensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial veport. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current

comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA (o deternine its eligibility for another certificate
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| Dave Yost - Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT

Berkshire Local Schoot District
Geauga County

14259 Claridon Troy Road, Box 364
Burton, Ohio 44021-0364

To the Board of Education:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Berkshire Local School District Geauga County, Chio
(the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the District’s basle
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the District’'s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contalned in the Comptroller General of the
United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to reasonably assure whether the financial statements are free of material misstatament. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evalualing the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respeclive financial position of the governmental activities, sach major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Berkshire Local School District Geauga County, Chio (the District), as of year ended
June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows, thereof
and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 3, the District adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standard Board
Slatement No. 64, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”.

In accordance with Government Audiling Standards, we have also issued our repor dated August 19,
2011 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracls and grant agreements and other
matters. While we did not opine on the inlernal control over financial reporting or on comgliance, that
report describes the scope of our testing of internal contrel over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Audiling Standards. You should read it in conjunction with this report in assessing the
results of cur audit.

Lausche Bullding, 615 Superfor Ave., NW, Twellth Fleor, Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1B01
Phone: 216-7807-3665 ar 800-626-2297 Fax: 216-787-3361
w augditor.state.oh.us
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Berkshire Local School District
Geauga County

Independent Accountants' Report
Page 2

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation 1o
include Management's discussion and analysis, as listed in the table of contents, to supplement the basic
financial slatements. Although this information is not part of the basic financial statements, the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board considers it essential for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context, We have applied certain limited
procedures 1o the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency wilh management's responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any other assurance.

We conducted our audit 1o opine on the financial statements that collectively comprise the District's basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The infroductory section, the financial section’s combining
statements, individval fund statements and schedules, and the statistical section information provide
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financlal statements. The financlal section's
combining statements, individual fund statements and schedules are management's responsibility, and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 1o prepare the
basic financial statements. These statements and schedules were subject to the auditing procedures we
applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling this information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the hasic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. We did
nol subject the introduclory section and statistical section information to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial staltements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or any other
assurance on them,

/

Dave Yost
Auditor of State

August 19, 2011
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The management’s discussion and analysis of Berkshire Local School District’s (the School District)
financial performance provides an overall review of the School District’s financial activities for the fiscal
yvear ended June 30, 2011, The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the Schoel District’s
financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the (ransimittal letter, the basic financial
statements and the notes to the basic financial statements to enhance their understanding of the Schoot
District’s financial performance,

Financial Highlights
Key Financial Highlights for fiscal year 2011 are as follows:

o Total net assets of governinental activities decreased $705,210 which represents a 12.44 percent
decrease trom fiscal year 2010.

o Total revenues of $12,441,583 were comprised of general revenues in the amount of $10,633,215 or
85.47 percent and program specilic revenues from charges for services, grants and contributions in
the amount of $1,808,368 or 14.53 percent.

¢ The School District is committed to meeting the academic needs of our students by providing them
with updated textbooks and instructional materials to compete in a global environment. During
fiscal year 2011, the School District adopted a new series of textbooks for language auts for grades K
through [2.

s The School District purchased one new bus for transporting students.

Using the Basic [inancial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand the Berkshire Local School District as a financial
whole, or complete operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly <letailed lock at
specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole School District, presenting both an aggregate and longer-terin view of those finances. Fund financial
statements provide the next Jevel of detail. For governmental finds, these statements explain how services
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements
also look at the School District’s most significant funds with all other nonmajor funds presenied in total in
one column, In the case of the Berkshire Local School District, the general fund is by far the most
significant fund.

Reporting the School District as a Whole
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While these statements contain information about the large number of funds used by the School District to
provide programs and activities, the view of the School District as a whole looks at all financial transactions
and asks the question, “How did we do financially during 20017 The Statement of Net Assels and the
Statement of Activitics answer this question. These statemnents include all non-fiduciary assets and liabilities
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using the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companics. This
basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School District’s net assets and changes in those asscts. This change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the School District as a whaole the financial position of
the School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors,
some financial, some not. Non-financial factors include the School District’s current property tax base,
current property tax laws in Ohio restricting revenue growth, Ffacility conditions, required educational
prograns and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, all of the School District’s activitics are
classified as governmental. All of the School District’s programs and services are reported here including
instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil transportation, operation of food
services and extracurricular activitics.

Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds

The analysis of the School District’s major funds begins on page 9. Fund financial reports provide detailed
information about the School District’s major funds. The School District uses many funds to account for a
multitude of financial transactions. Flowever, these fund financial statements focus on the School District’s
most significant funds. The School District’s major governmental funds are the general fund and the

permanent improvement capital projects fund.

Governmental Funds Most of the School District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at fiscal year-end available for
spending in future periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School District’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs.
The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Proprietary Fund The School District maintains a proprietary fund. Internal service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the School District’s various
functions. The School District’s internal service fund accounts for dental and prescription claims self-
insurance. The proprietary fund uses the accrual basis of accounting.

Fiduclary Funds Tiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the School District. Fiduciary [uncls are not reflected on the government-wide financial statements because
the resources from these funds are not available to support the School District’s programs. These funds use
the accrual basis of accounting.
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The School District as a Whole

Reeall that the statement of nel assets provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Table |
provides a summary of the School District’s nel assets for 2011 compared to 2010:

Table 1
Net Assets
Governmental Activities

2011 2010 Change

Assels
Current and Other Assets 8,278,139 38,193,213 $85,526
Capital Assets, net 3,404,650 3,518,243 {113,593)
Total Assets 11,683,389 11,711,456 (28,067)
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 5,694,669 5,169,643 525,026
Long-Term Liabilities

Duc Within One Year 279315 182,726 96,589

Due tn More Than One Year 747,741 692,213 55,528
Total Liabllities 6,721,725 6,044,582 677,143
Net Asscts
ivested in Capital Assets 3,404,650 3,518,243 (113,593)
Restricted For:

Capital Projects 203,064 193,702 9,362

Set Asicles 39,468 39,468 -

Other Purposes 31,163 102,983 (71,820)
Unrestricted 1,283,319 1,812,478 (529,159
Total Net Assety $4,961,664 $5,666,874 ($705,210)

By comparing assets and liabilities, one can see the overall position of the School District has declined as
evidenced by the decrease in net assets. Management continues to diligently plan expenses, staying carefully
within the School District’s revenues in an effort to maintain the durations between its levy requests.

In order to further understand whal makes up the changes in net assets for the current year, the following
table gives readers further details regarding the results of activities for the current year. Table 2 shows total
revenues, expenses and changes in net assets for the fiscal year 2011 and 2010,
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I'rogram Revenues
Charges for Services and Sales
Operating Grants and Contributions

Total Program Revenues

Geners] Revenues
Property Taxes

[ncome Taxes

Grants and Entitlements
[nvestments
Miscellaneous

Yotal General Revennes

Total Revenes

Program Expenses
instruction:

Regular

Special

Vocational

Student Intervention
Support Services

Pupil

Tustructional Staff

Board of Education

Administration

Fiscal

Business

Operation and Maintenance of Plant

Pupil Transportation
Operation of Food Services
Extraeurricular Activities

Total Program Expenses

Inerease (Decrease) in Net Assets

Net Assefs Beginning of Year
Net Asscts End of Year

Table 2
Governmental Activities

2011 2010 Change
$747,973 $559,716 $188,257
1,060,395 959,797 100,598
1,808,368 1,519,513 288,855
4,384,721 4,039,665 345,056
1,626,657 1,536,729 89,928
4,571,888 4,650,589 (79,001)
9,820 13,083 (3,263)
40,129 19,758 20,371
10,633,215 10,260,124 373,091
12,441,583 11,779,637 661,946
5,126,717 4,830,346 296,371
1,807,617 1,529,679 277,938
75,058 76,125 (1,067)
191,649 339,048 (147,39%)
0
698,939 600,884 98,055
475,608 455,767 19,841
50,980 41,679 9,301
1,227,358 1,113,593 113,765
438,902 382,159 56,743
30,680 28,687 1,993
1,194,648 878,611 316,037
1,043,081 791,630 351,451
320,036 264,105 53,931
365,520 382,735 (17,215
13,146,793 11,715,048 1,431,745
(705,210) 64,589 (769,799
5,666,874 5,602,285 64,589
$4.961.604 $5,666,874 ($705.210)
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Graph 1
Revenues and Cxpenses
(In Millions)
2011 2010
Revenues $124 1.7
Expenses 13.1 1.7

Revenues and Expenses
(in millions)

$13.30
F13.00
31250 +
$12.00
$11.50 -
$11.00

CaRevenues
sl [k penses

2011 2010

Governmentul Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in Ohio creates the need to routinely seek voter approval for operating
funds. The overall revenue generated by a voted levy does not increase solely as a result of inflation. It
increases as a resull of new construction or collection from a new voted levy, Although school districts
experience inflationary growth i expenses, tax revenue does not kecp pace with the increased expenses due
to House Bill 920. As an example, a homeowner with a home valued at $100,000 and taxed at 1.0 mill
would pay $35.00 annually in taxes. If three years later the home were reappraised and increased to
$200,000 (aud this mflationary increase in value is comparable to other property owners) the eflective tax
rate would become .5 mills and the owner would still pay less than $35.00 and the School District would
coliect the same dollar value the levy generated in the year it passed. The [0 percent rollback on all
residential/agricultural property and the 2.5 percent rollback on all owner occupied howmes would reduce the
amount of taxes paid.

Thus school districts dependent upon property taxes are hampered by a lack of revenue growth and must
regularly return to the voters to maintain a constant level of service. The increase in property tax revenue
was due to new construction coming on to the tax duplicate and the collection of delinquencies,

In May 2007, the community approved a one percent income tax levy on all earned income within the School
District effective for the 2008 collections. This replaced the .75 percent incame tax levy on all income
within the School District.

Overall expenses increased during fiscal vear 2011 due to negotiated salary agreements as well as an 8.5
; . Y 2 Y
pexcent increase in healthcare costs.  Additionally, special education requirements and the requirements
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dictated by the federal No Child Left Behind legislation continue to add pressure (o the School District's
budget.

The School District actively pursues grants and controls expenses while still maintaining the high academic
standards the residents expect of the School District.

Parents continue to have the opportunity to pay for the student’s lunch online. Each student uses hisfher
personal identification number, that accesses his/her account, when visiting the cafeteria. Caleleria prices
did ncrease stightly in order to cover rising costs.

In May 2006, the School District sold the Troy Elementary School building at an auction with the option 1o
lease it back for two or more years. This was the beginning of the School District’s long-term plan of
bringing all elementary students under one roof. This final sale was completed in July 2006. The School
District began construction on additional modular units to Burton Elementary during fiscal year 2009 and
moved the Troy Elementary stiudents into the new modular units in fiscal year 2010.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows, for govermmental activities, the total cost of services and the net
cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted
State entitlements.

The negative amounts indicated in Table 3 should not be construed as something bad, they are merely
indicative of whether a particular function of government relies on general revenues for financing or is a net
contributor of resources to the School District. Clearly, the four communities that comprise the School
District are, by far, the greatest source of financial support for the students of the Berkshire Local School
District,
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Table 3
Total and Net Cost of Programn Services
Governmental Activitics

2011 2010
Tolal Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
of Service of Service of Service of Scrvice
Instruction;
Reguiar $5,126,717 ($4,631,633) 54,830,346 ($4,354,480)
Special 1,807,617 (962,987) 1,529,679 (923,407)
Vocational 75,058 (75,058) 76,125 (76,125)
Stucdent Intervention 191,649 (191,649 339,048 (339,048)
Supporl Services:
Pupil (98,939 (679,168) 600,884 (591,816}
Inslructional StalT 475,608 (475,608) 455,767 {455,767}
Board of Education 50,980 {50,980) 41,679 (41,679)
Administration 1,227,358 (1,222,808) 1,113.593 (1,109,020
[Fiscal 438,902 (438,902) 382,159 (382,159
Business 30,680 (30,680) 28,687 {28,687)
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 1,194,648 (1,194,648) 878,611 (878,611)
Pupil Transportation 1,143,081 (1,143,081 791,630 (791,630)
Operation of Food Services 320,036 (92,875) 264,105 (50,559)
Extracurricular Activities 365,520 (148,348) 382,735 {(172,547)
Total $13,146,793 ($11,338425) 511,715,048 ($10.195,535)

The School District’s Funds

Information rcgarding the Schoel District’s major funds begins on page 14. These funds are accounted for
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds had total yrevenues of $12,400,182
and expenditures of $12,608,608. The general fund decrease in fund balance is mainly due to the increases
in instructional costs. The permanent improvement fund balance remained consistent with the prior year.
The District has developed a five year plan of improvements and continues to stay within revenue
projections. As one can see from the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds, property and income taxes from the communities that comprise the School District are
the largest revenue source, accounting for 48 percent of total governmental revenue,

General Fund Budgeting Hightlights

The Scheol District’s budget is prepared according to Ohio law and is based on accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant fund to be
budgeted is the main operating fund of the School District, the general fund.

During the course of fiscal year 2011, the School District amended its general fund budgetl several times.
The School District uses a site-based budgeting system designed to tightly control total site budgets but
provide flexibility for site managemcnt.

The School District is continuing to see an increase in the required services for our special education

students. Additional physical and occupational therapy services were needed for students this year and we

saw an increase in our special education students needing services. There were no individually significant

events that caused this variance. The School Distriet ended the fiscal year $240,569 higher than budgeted.
-9.
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This is due in Jarge part to the School District’s continued commitment to provide a quality education while
stilt controlling the costs of a quality education.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Cuapital Assefy
Table 4 shows fiscal 2011 balances compared to 2010:
Table 4
Capital Assets at June 30

(Net of Depreciation)
Governimental Aclivitics

2011 2010
Land £13,810 $13,810
Land Improvements 82,614 89,901
Building and Improvemenls 2,660,981 2,725,329
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipiment 228,604 273,013
Vehicles 418,641 416,190
Total Capital Assets 53,404,650 53,518,243

The School District purchased one new bus during fiscal year 2011, This increase was offset by the annual
depreciation. Ohio law requires school districts to set aside three percent of certain revenues for capital
improvements and an additional three percent for textbooks and instructional materials and supplies. For
fiscal year 2011, this amounted to $165,423 for each set aside. See Note 1] to the basic financial statements
for additional information on the School District’s capital assets and Note 20 for additional information
regarding required set-asides.

Deby

The School District had no bonded debt in fiscal year 201 | and also maintains a AAA bond rating.

School District Qutlook

The financial future of the School District is not without its challenges. These challenges are internal and
external in nature. The internal challenges will continue lo exist as the School District must rely heavily on
[ocal property taxes to fund its operations. External challenges continue to evelve as the State’s educational
funding system is generating zero to minimal growth in funding operations. As the preceding information
shows, the School District is heavily reliant on local property taxpayers.

Management must continue to diligently plan expenses, staying carefuily within the School District’s
financial forecast. Additional revenues must not be treated as a windfall to expand programs but as an
opportunity to extend the time horizon of the life of the levies.

The School District has committed itself to financial and educational excellence for many years to come.
The School District has received the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Certificate of

- 10 -
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Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting sinee 2000, Due to budget constraints during fiscal year
2009, the School District decided to forgo publishing a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
one year and onfy publish the required Basic Financial Statements. The School District received the GFOA
award for its report for the fiscal year 2010 and has submitted this report to GFOA for consideration,

[n conclusion, the Berkshire Local School District is in a period posing both significant challenges and
opportunities. Management is committed to working with all stakeholders to craft solutions that will most
effectively use the available resources to continue to provide an excellent education to the students of the
School District.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a geneval
overview of the School Distriet’s finances and to show the School District’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information contact Beth A.
McCaffrey, in the Treasurer’s Office, at Berkshire Local School District, 14259 Claridon Troy Road, P.O
Box 364, Burton, Ohio 4402]. beth.mccaflrey@berkshireschools.org
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Governmental

Activities

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $3,153,630
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 39,468
Accounts Recetvable 10,695
Intergovernimental Receivable (2,731
Prepaid [tems 2,029
Inventory Held for Resale 6,888
Materials and Supplies Inventory 1,323
Income Taxes Receivable 718,145
Property Taxes Receivable 4,333,830
Nondepreciable Capital Assets £3,810
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 3,390,840
Total Assels 11,683,389
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 70,927
Accrued Wages and Benefits 1,023,439
Intergovernmental Payable 735,401
Matured Compensated Absences Payable 60,691
Matured Terminatton Benefits Payable 17,024
Dicferred Revenue 3,768,823
Claims Payable 18,364
Long-Term Liabilities:

Due Within Gne Year 279,315

Due In More Than One Year 747,741
Total Liabkilities 6,721,725
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets 3,404,650
Restricted for:

Capital Projects 203,064

Set Asides 39,468

Other Purposes 31,163
Unrestricted 1,283,319
Total Net Assets $4,961,664

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements




Berkshire Loeal School District
Statement of Activiites
Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Program Reventies

Nel (Expense)
Revenue and
Chunges in

Mot Assetls

Charges Operaling
for Services Granls and Governmental
Fxpenses and Sales Coniribulions Activities

Goverwnmental Activities
Instruction:

Regular $5,126,717 $36,308 $438.776 ($4,631,633)

Special 1,507,647 361,691 482,939 (962.987)

Vocationnl 75,058 0 0 (75,058}

Student Inervention 19,649 0 0 (191,649}
Support Servicys:

Pupil 698,939 9 19,771 (679,168)

Insteuctional Stafl 475,608 0 0 (475,608)

Board of Educalion 50,980 0 0 (50.580)

Administration 1,227,358 0 4,550 {1.222.808)

Fiscal 438,902 0 0 {438,902)

Business 30,680 0 ] (30,680)

Operation and Maintenance ol Plant 1,194,648 0 0 (1,19:4,648)

Pupil Transportation 1,143,081 0 0 (1,143,081)
Operation of Food Services 320,036 138,066 $9,005 (92,875)
Exlracurricular Activilies 165,520 211,908 5.264 {148,5418)
Totals 213,146,793 747 973 $1,060,395 (11,338,425)

Sec accompanying notes 10 the basic finpneial staiements

Genernl Revennes

Property Taxes Levicd lor:
General Purposes
Capital Outlay

Income Taxes Levied for General Purposes
Granls and Entitlements not Reslricted (o

Speeilic Programs
Investinent Farnings
Miscellaneous

Total General Revennes

Change in Nel Asscls

Net Assets Beginning af Yewr

Net Assets, nd af Yeor

Resiated (See Note 3}

£,165,046
219,675
1,626,657

4,571,888
9,820
40,129
10.633.215

(705,210)

56668

44,061,664



Berkshire Local School District

Balance Sheet

Govermmental Funds

Jinre 30, 2011

e ——

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Restricted Assels:
Equity in Pooled Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
Interfund Reccivable
Intergovernmental Receivable
Prepaid ltems
Inventory Meld for Resale
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Income Taxes Receivable
Property Taxes Receivable

Total Assels

Liabitities and Fund Bulances
Liabitities

Aceounts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefits

Interfund Payable

Intergovernmental Payable

Matured Compensated Absences Payable
Matured Termination Benefils Payable
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted

Assigned
Unassigned (Deficil)

Total Fund Batances

FYoral Liablities and Fund Balunces

Other Total
Permancnt Governmental Governimental

General Improvement Funds Funds
$2,812,232 $i74,831 $141,000 $3,128,003
39,468 0 0 39,468
10,6935 0 0 10,695
20,000 0 0 20,000
11,963 0 768 12,731
2,029 0 0 2,029
0 0 6,888 0,838
0 0 1,323 1,323
718,145 0 0 718,145
4,116,785 217,045 ) 4,331,830
$7,731,317 $391.876 £149,079 $58,273,172
£68,388 30 $2,539 $70,927
1,002,581 0 20,858 1,023,439
0 0 20,000 20,000
700,618 0 34,783 735,401
60,691 0 0 60,691
17,024 0 0 17,024
3,812,892 197,216 0 4,010,108
5,662,194 197,216 78,180 5,937,590
2,029 0 8,211 10,240
41,045 194,660 64,013 299,718
888,474 0 ] 888,474
1,137,575 0 (425) 1,137,150
2,069,123 194,660 71,799 2,335,582
__ $7,731,317 $391,876 $149,979 $8,273,172

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Reconciliation of Totcd Governmental Fund Balances fo
Net dssets of Governmental Activities
June 30, 2011

Total Governmental Fund Balances $2,335,582

Amounts reported for goverintental activities in the statement of
net assefs ave different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 3,404,650

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-pertod
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Property Taxes 167,797
Income Taxes 73,488
Total 241,285

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the
costs of insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities
of the internal service fund are included in governinental
activities in the statement of net assets, 7,203

Long-term liabilities payable, such as compensated absences, are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not

reported in the funds. (1,027,056)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $4,961,664

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Berkshire Local School District
Statement of Revennes, Expenditires ond Chaniges in Fund Bolances

Govermmental Frinds

For the Fiseal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues

Incoine Taxes

Property Taxes
Inlergovernmentat
Inlerest

Tuition and Iees
Extracurriculur Activitivs
Contributions and Donaliong
Charpes For Services
Rentals

Misccllancous

Foted Kevennes

Expenditines
Current;
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Vocational
Student Intervention
Supporl Serviees:
Pupil
Instructional Stalt
Boad ol Education
Administration
Fiscal
Busingss

Operation and Maintenance of Plant

Pupil Transportation
Operation of Food Services
Cxtracurricular Aclivities

Capilal Quitlay

Totul Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)

FExpenditures

Other Financing Uses
Transfers Oul

Net Change in Fund Bataices

Fund Balances Beginning of Year - Restated -(See Note 3)

Fund Balances End of Year

Other Total
Permanent Gaoverninenlal Governmental
General Improvement Funds [Funds

$1,626,657 f0 50 $1,620.657
4,130,507 218,813 0 4,349,320
4,500,422 74,638 1,035,848 5,610,908
9,820 0 0 9,820
397,999 0 %) 397,999
154,619 0 55,289 209,908
14,771 0 6,604 21,375

4] 0 138,000 138,066

2,000 0 0 2,000
40,129 0 0 40,129
10,876,924 293,451 1,235,807 12,400,182
4,427,035 39,181 454,343 4,920,559
1,382,908 0 416,376 1,799,284
71,257 0 201 71,458
191,649 ] Q 191,649
607,283 0 35,607 642,890
452,087 4] 1,159 453 240
50,980 0 0 50,980
1,154,534 4] 40,750 1,195,284
428,345 4,505 ] 432,910
30,680 0 0 30,680
201,602 246,725 0 1,148,327
1,018,781 0 0 1,018,781
0 0 279,864 279,864

302,071 0 62,325 364,396
8,300 0 0 8,300
11,027,512 290,471 1,290,625 . 12,608,608
(150,588) 2,980 (54.818) (202,426}
(250,000) ] 1] (230,000)
(400,588) 2,980 (54,818) (d452,420)
2,469,711 191,680 126,617 2,788,008
$2,069,123 $194,660 $71,799 $2,335,582

Sce accompanying notes Lo the basic finaneial slatements
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Berkshire Local School District

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Ixpenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds fo the Statement of Acrivities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amonnts reported for goveriumental activities in the
statement of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statemenl of activities, the cost of those assels is allocated over their
estimated useful Jives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the curient period.

Capital Qutlay $74,500
Depreciation (188,093)
Total

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Property Taxes 35,401

Total

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities, such as compensated
absences, do not require the use of curvent financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

The internal service fund used by management to charge the costs of
insurance to individual funds is not reported 1 the district-wide statements
of activities. Governmnental Tund expenditures and related inlernal service
fund revenues are climinated. The net revenue {expense) of the internal
service fund is allocated among the governmental activities.

Chenge in Net Assety of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Berkshire Loeal School District

Stertenrent of Revenvies, Expenditures and Chenges
I Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and dctual

General Fund
For the Fiscel Year Bydedd frne 30, 2001

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budgel

Pasitive
Original Final Actual (Negalive)
Revenues ) I -
Income Taxes $1,577,032 $1,626,657 $1,626,657 10
Property ‘Tnxes 3,944,797 4,104,143 4,104,143 0
[ntergovernmental 4,516,022 4,496,994 4,500,422 3,428
Interest 12,000 9,214 0,820 6006
Tuition and Fees 232,500 407,152 397,999 {9,153)
Extracureicular Activitics 113,098 152,602 134.61% 2,017
Contributions and Donalions ] 16,640 14,771 {1,869)
Renlals 0 2,000 2,000 0
Miscellineous 40,903 28666 28,166 _(500)
Total Revenes 10,436,352 10,844,008 10,838,597 (5,471)
LExpenditures
Currentl:
Instruction:
Regulur 4,599,020 4,457,807 1,427,184 30,083
Special 1,291,733 1,468,397 1,382,002 86,395
Vocational 66,618 71,790 71,004 736
Student hucrvenlion Scrvices 194,610 212,788 210,463 2,325
Support Servicos:
Pupil 851,517 571,378 559,457 11,921
Instroctional Staff 363,913 424,911 419,443 5,408
Bourd of Ecuention 94,806 54,373 53,242 I,131
Administralian 1,098,257 1,119,753 1,105,821 13,932
Fiseal 186,523 395,281 386,845 8,436
Business 24,500 32,250 30,970 1,280
Operntion amd Maimlenance ol Plant §14,815 834,570 514,010 24),554
Pupil Transportation 769,628 882,900 862,092 20,808
Ixirpcurrieulor Aclivilies 287,363 291,473 288,255 3,218
Capital Oullay 10,000 4,300 §,300 0
Toral Expenditures 10,873,303 10,826,031 10,619,094 206,937
Excesy of Revenuex Qer (Under) Expendittres {436,951) 18,037 219,503 201,466
Qther Finaucing Sources (Uses )
Advance Qul ] (26,000) (20,000) 6,000
Tranglers In 0 183,720 0 (183,7206)
Transfirs Out {314,244) (466,826)  (250,000) 216,826
Total Cther Finmeing Sorrces (Uives) (314,244) (309,100) {270,000) 39,100
Net Change in Find Bealance (751,195) (291,063) (50,497 240,366
Fund Bealance Bepinuing of Year 2,769,512 2,769,512 2,769.512 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 28,062 28,062 28062 0
Fundd Balance End of Year _ S2.M637Y R2.506.511 $2.747.097 $240.566

Sce accampmnying notes to the basic Nnancial statements
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Berkshire Local School District
Statement of Fund Net Assets
Internal Service Fund
Jume 30, 2011

[nsurance
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $25,567
Liabilities
Claims Payable 18,364
MNet Assets
Unrestricted $7,203

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Berkshire Local School District
Statement of Revenues,
Lxpenses and Changes in frund Net Assels
faterndl Service Fund
For the [riscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Insurance

Operating Revenucs

Charges for Services $131,447
Operating Expenses

Purchased Services 2,005
Claims 401,917
Total Operating Expenses 403,922
Loss Before Transfers (272,475)
Transfers In 250,000
Change in Net Assels (22,475)
Net Assels Beginning of Year 29,678
Ner Assets, End of Year $7,203

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Berkshire Local School District
Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Insurance

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Received from Interfund Services Provided $131,447
Cash Payments for Goods and Services {2,003)
Cash Payments for Claims (402,484)
Net Cash Used for Operating Activities (273,042)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Transfers In 250,000
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalenis (23,042)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 48,609
Cash and Cash Eguivalents, End of Year $25,567

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used for Operating Acfivities

Operating Loss 7 ($272,475)
Adjustments:

Decrease in Claims Payable {567)
Net Cash Used for Operating dctivities ($273,042)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Berlshire Local Schoo! District
Startement of Fidiciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds
June 30, 2011

Assefs

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents $42.323
Liabilities

Due to Students $33,163
Undistributed Monies 9. 160
Total Liabilities $42,323

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Berkshire Local School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note 1 - Deserxiption of the School District and Reporting Entity

Berkshire Local School District (the “School District’”) operates under a locally elected Board form of
government and provides cducational services as authorized by state and/or federal agencies. This Board
controls the School District’s three instructional/support facilities staffed by 56.5 nen-certified enployees, 72
certified full time teaching personnel and 7 administrative employees to provicde services to 1,083 students and
other community members.

The School District was established in 1967 and is organized under Article VI, Sections 2 and 3 of the
Constitution of the State of Ohio. Under such laws there is no authority for a school district to have a charter
or adopt local laws. The legislative power of the School District is vested n the Board of Education,
consisting of five members elected at-large for staggered four year terms,

The School District serves an area of approximately 70 square miles. Tt is located in Geauga County,
including all of Burton, Clariden, and Troy Townships, Ohio. Tt currently operates three instructional
buildings and one administrative building.

Reporting Entity

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other crganizations that are
included to insure that the basic financial statements of the Scheol District are not misleading. The primary
government consists of all funds, departiments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the
School District. For Berkshire Local School District, this includes the agencies and departiments that provide
the following services: general operations, food service and student related activitics of the School District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the School District is financially accountable.
The School District is financially accountable for an organization if the School District appoints a voting
majority of the organization's governing board and (1) the Schocl District is able to significantly influence the
programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the School District is legally entitled to
or can otherwisc access the organization’s rescurces; the School District is legally obligated or has otherwise
assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or previde financial support to, the organization; or the
School District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may alse inclide organizations
that ave fiscally dependent on the School District in that the Scheol District approves the budget, the issuance
of debt or the levying of taxes. The School District has no component units,

The School District is associated with three jointly governed organizations, one related organization and one
msurance purchasing pool, These organizations are the Auburn Career Center, the Lake Geauga Comyputer
Association, the Ohio Schools Council Association, the Burton Public Library and the Ohio Association of
School Business Officials Workers® Compensation Group Rating Program. These organizations are presented
in Notes 17, 18 and 19 to the basic financial statements,

Note 2 - Swmmary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the School District have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applicd to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for cstablishing governimental accounting and financial
reporting principles.  The School District also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its governmental activities and to its
internal service fund unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The
more significant of the School District’s accounting policics are described below.

-23 .



Berkshire Local School District
Notes to the Basic Finencial Statemnents
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

A. Basis of Presentation

The School District’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement
of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more detajled level of
financial information,

Government-wide Financlal Stofements The statement of net assets and the statement of activitics display
information about the School District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the
primary government, except for fiduciary funds. The activity of the internal service fund is eliminated to
avoid “doubling up” revenues and expenses. These statements usually distinguish between those activities of
the School District that are governmental and those that are considered business-type. The School District,
however, has no business-type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the [nancial condition of the governmental activities of the School
District at fiscal year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each program or function of the School District’s governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, prograin or department and thercfore clearly
identifiable to a particular function, Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or
services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular prograin and interest earned on grants that is required to be used to support
a particular programn. Revenues which are unot classified as program revenues are presented as general
revenues of the School District, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with
program revenues identifies the extent to which each governimental activity is self-financing or draws from (le
general revenues of the Schoot District.

Fund Financial Stotements During the year, the School District segregales transactions related to certain
School District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to
demonstrate legal compliance, Fund financial statements are designed to present finaucial information of the
School District at this more detailed level. The focus of governinental fund finaneial statements is on major
funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a
single column. The internal service fund is presented in a single colunn on the face of the proprictary fund
statements. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

B. Fund Accounting

The School District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as a fiscal
and accounting entity with a self balancing set of accounts, There are three categories of funds: governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds Governimental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically
are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial
resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for
which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid.
The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund batance. The following are
the School District's major governimental funds:

General Fund The general fund is the operating fund of the School District and is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund balance is
available to the School District for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the
general laws of Ohio. '
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Berkshire Local School District
Notes 1o the Basic Financial Statementys
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201]

Permanent Improvement Fund The permanent improvement fund receives property taxes for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of capital facilities.

The other gavernmental funds of the School District account for grants and other resources whose use is
restricted to a particular purpose.

Proprietury Fund Type Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the deterinination of operating income, changes
in net assets, financial position and cash flows. Proprietary funds are classified as enterprise or internal
service; the School District has no enterprise funds.

Internal Service Fund  The internal service fund accounts for the financing of services provided by one
department or agency to other departiments or agencies of the School District on a cost reimburscment
basis. The School Distric(’s only internal service fund is a self insurance fund that accounts for dental
and prescription claims of’ School District employees.

Fiduciary Fund Type Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net asscts and changes in net assets. The fiduciary
fund category is split into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose trust
funds and agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the School District under a trust
agreement for incividuals, private organizations, or other governments and are therefore notl available to
support the School District’s own programs.  The School District has no trust funds.  Agency funds are
custodial in nature {(assets equal liabilities) and de not involve measurement of results of operations. The
School District’s agency funds account for student and elementary activities.

C. Measurement Focuy

Government-wide Financiaf Statements The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the
Scheol District are included on the statement of net assets. The statement of activities presents increases (e.g.
revenues) and decreases (e.g. expenditures) in total nel assets.

Fund Financial Statements  All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus.  With this measurement focus, only curcent assels and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other linancing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditwres and
other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the
governmental aclivities of the government-wide financial statements are preparcd.  Governmental fund
financial statemen(s therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship
between the government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, the intcrnal scrvice fund is accounted for on a flow of economic
resourees measurement focus.  All assels and all liabilities associated with the operation of this fund are
included on the statement of fund net assets. The statement of changes in fund net assets presents increases
(i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.c., expenses) in net total asscts. The statement of cash flows provides
information about how the School District finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activily,
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Berkshire Local School District
Notes 1o the Basic Financial Statenienls
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

D. Basis of Acconnting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements. Government-wide financial statements and statements for the proprietary and fiduciary
funds are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified acerual basis of accounting arise in the recognilion
of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions Revenue resulting from exchange transaclions, in
which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the
resources are measurable and become available, Available means that the resources will be collected within
the current fiscal year or are expecled to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year, For the School District, available means expected to be received within sixty days of fiscal
year-end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without divectly giving equal value in
return, include income taxes, property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue
from income taxes is recognized in the fiscal year in which the income is earned and revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied (See Note 6). Revenue [rom grants,
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all cligibility requirements have been
satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requircments, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the School District
must provide Jocal resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requireiments, in which the
resources are provided to the School District on a roimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue
from nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified acecrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and
available at fiscal year-end: propertly taxes available as an advance, interest, tuition, grants, fees and rentals.

Deferred Revenne Deferred revenne arises when assets are recognized before vevenue recognition criteria
have been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of June 30, 2010, but which were levied to
finance fiscal year 2011 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenue. Grants and entitlements received
before the eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as deferred revenue.

On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period
have also been reported as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures  On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are
incurred,

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which
the related fund liability ts incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization,
are not recognized in governmental funds.
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Berkshire Local School District
Notes to the Basic Financiol Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

E. Casih and Cash Equivalents

To improve cash management, cash received by the School District is pocled. Monies for all funds are
maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is maintained through the School District’s records. Interest
in the pool is presented as "equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents” on the financial statements.

During fiscal year 2011, the School District invested in STAR Ohio. STAR Olio (the State Treasury Asset
Reserve of Ohio), is an investiment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office which allows governments
within the State to pool their funds for investment purpeses. STAR Ohio is not registered with the SEC as an
investment company, bul does operate in a mamner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Tnvestment Company Act
of 1940. Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR Ohio’s share price which is the price the investment
could be sold for on June 30, 2011,

Following Ohio statutes, the Board of Education has, by resolution, specified the funds to receive an allocation
of interest earnings. Intercst revenue credited to the general fund during fiscal year 2011 amounted to $9,820.

Investments of the cash management pool and investments with an original maturity of three months or less at
the time they are pwrchased by the School District are presented on the financial statements as cash
equivalents.

F. Restricted Assels

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature or normal understanding of
the availability of the asset. Such constraints are either imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or the
laws of other governments, or iinposed by enabling legislation. Restricted assets in the general fund include
amounts required by State statute to be set aside to creale a reserve for budget stabilization. See Note 20 for
additional information regarding set-asides.

G. Prepaid ifems

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 201 1, are recorded as prepaid
items using the consumption method. A current asset for the prepaid amount is recorded at the time of the
purchase and an expenditure/expense is reported in the year in which services are consumed.

H. inventory

Inventories are presented at cost on a first-in, first-out basis and are expended/expensed when used.
[nventories consist of donated and purchased food held for resale and materials and supplies held for
consumption.

1. Capital Assets

The School District’s only capital assets are general capital assets. General capital assets are those assets not
specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary fund., These assets generally result from
expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of
the government-wide statement of net assets but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

Al capital assets are capitalized at cost {or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements
during the year. The School District was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of asscts
by back-trending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the assct to be capitalized and using an
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Berkshire Local School Distriet
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition year.) Donated
capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date received. The capitalization threshold is
two thousand five hundred dollars. The School District does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are
capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assel or materially
extend an asset’s life are not.

All reported capital assets, except land, are depreciated. lmprovements are depreciated over the remaining
useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
foltowing useful lives:

Governmental

Activities
Description Estimated Lives
Land Iimprovements 2( years
Buildings and Improvements 21 - 50 years
Furniture and Fixtures 5-25 years
Vehicles 8- I5years

J. Interfund Balances

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified
as “interfund receivables/payables”. These amounts are eliminated in the governimental activities column of
the statement of net assets.

K. Compensated Absences

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employecs' rights to receive
compensation ave attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will compensate
the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means. The School District records a
liability for accumulated unused vacation time when earned for all employees with more than one year of
service.

Sicle feave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability includes the employees
who are currently eligible to receive termination benefits and thosc the School District has identified as
probable of receiving payments in the future. The amount is based on accumulated sick leave and employees’
wage rates at fiscal year end, taking in to consideration any limits specified in the Scliool District’s termination
policy. The School District records a liability for accumulated unused sick leave for all employees with five
years of service with the School District,

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements.
On the governmental fund financial statements, compensated absences arc recognized as liabilities and
expenditures to the extent payments come due each period upon the occurrence of employee resignations and

retitements. These amounts are recorded in the account “matured compensated absences payable” in the
fund(s) from which the emnployees who have resigned or retired will be paid.
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Berkshire Local Sehool District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statenienis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

L. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are repoited in the government-wide financial
statements.

In general, governinental fund payables and accrued liabilitics that, once incurred, are paid in a tiinely manner
and 1n full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds. However, claims and
judgments, compensated absences and contractually required pension contributions that will be paid from
governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are
due for payment during the current fiscal year.

M. futernal Activity

Transfers between governmental activities are eliminated on the govermment wide financial statements.
Internal events that are allocations of overhead expenses from one function to another or within the same
function are eliminated on the Statement of Activities. Interfund payments for services provided and used are
not eliminated.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses
in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment
are reported as interfund (ransfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in
governmental funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds
that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial statements,

N. Fund Balance

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the School is bound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as

follows:

Nonspendable The nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable
form™ criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. [t also includes the long-tern
amount of loans receivable, as well as property acquired for resale, unless the use of the proceeds from the
collection of those receivables or from the sale of those properties is restricted, committed, or assigned.

Restricted Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governiments or is imposed by law through constitutional provisions.

Committed The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes imposed by a forral action (resolution) of the School District Board of Education. Those committed
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the School District Board of Education removes or
changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (resolution) it employed to previously commit
Lthose amounts. Committed fund balance also incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that existing
resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the School District

for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governinental
funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted
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Notes to the Basic Financial Stafements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

or cominitted. In the general fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the School District
Board of Education.

Unassigned Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other governmental funds, the unassigned
classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for
which amounts had been vestricted, committed, or assigned.

The School District applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which
either restricted or unrestricted (commitied, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned
amounts when expendilures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund
balance classificattons could be used.

0. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of’
any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assetz. Net assets are reported
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by
the School District or through external restvictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of
other governments, Net assets restricted for other purposes include instructional operations, food service
operations and extracurricular activittes.

The School District applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

P. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary
fund, For the School District, these revenues are charges for services for self-insurance programs. Operating
expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that is the primary activity of the fund.
Any revenues and expenses not meeting the definitions of operating ave reported as nonoperating,

Q. Extraordinary and Special Iterns

Extracidinary items are fransactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence.
Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of the Board of Education and that are either
unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence.

R. Estimares

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepled accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financtal statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

S. Budgetary Data

All funds, other than agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. The major
documents prepared are the tax budget, the appropriation resolution and the certificate of estiiated resources,
whiclt are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The tax budget demonstrates a need for existing or
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increased tax rates, The certificate of estimated resources establishes a limit on the amounts that the Board of
Education may appropriate. The appropriation resolution is the Board’s authorization to spend resources and
set annual limits on expendifures plus encumbrances at a level of control selected by the Board. The legal
level of control has been established by the Board of Education at the fund level for all funds. The Treasurer
has been given authority to allocate board appropriations to the function and object levels within each fund.

The certificate of estimated resources may be amended during the year if projected increases or decreases in
revenue are identified by the School District Treasurer, The amounts reported as the original and final
budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts in the certificate when the original and final
appropriations were passed by the Board of Education,

The appropriation resolution is subject to amendment by the Board throughout the year with the restriction that
appropriations may not exceed estimated revenues. The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts
reflect the first appropriation for that fund that covered the entire fiscal year, including amounts automatically
carried over from prior years. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts represent the final
appropriation amounts passed by the Board during the fiscal year.

Note 3 - Change in Accounting Principle and Restatement of Fund Balance
Change in Accoanting Principie

For fiscal year 2011, the School District has implemented Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB)
Statement No, 54 which enhances the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund
balance classifications that can be more consistently applicd and by clarifying the existing governmental fund
type definitions, This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which a goverminent is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources reported in governmental funds. The implementation of this statement resulted in the
reclassification of certain funds and restatement of the School District’s financial statements.

Restatement of Prior Year's Fund Balance/Net Assels

The implementation of GASB Statement No. 54 had the following effect on fund balances:

Other
General Governmental Total
Fund Balance at June 30, 2010 $2.454,250 $332,181 $2,786,43 1
Change in Fund Structure 15,461 (13,884) 1,577
Adjusted Fund Balance at June 30, 2010 $2,469,711 $318,297 $2,788,008

During fiscal year 2011, the School District modified its fund classification due to the School District
reevaluating its fund structure. This restatement increased net assets of governmental activities by $1,577
[rom $5,665,297 to $5,666,874.
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Note 4 — Budgetary Basis of Accounting

While the School District is reporting its financial position, results of operations and changes in fund balance
on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is
based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances.
The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and
Actual presented for the general fund is presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison
of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the budget basis and GAAP basis are as
follows:

l. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when the liability is
incurred (GAAP).

3. Encumbrances arc treated as expenditures (budget) rather than as a reservation of fund balance
(GAAP).

The following table summarizes the adjustments necessary to reconcile the GAAP basis statements to the
budgetary basis statements for the general fund.

Net Change in Fund Balance

GAAP Basis ($400,588)
Net Adjustment for Revenue Aceruals (38,327)
Net Adjustment for Expenditure Accruals 493,044
Encumbrances (104,623)
Bucdgpet Basis ($50,494)

Note 5 - Deposits and Investments

Monies held by the School District are classifted by State statute into three categories.

Active imonies are public monies determined to be necessary to meet current demands upon the Schaool District
freasury. Aclive monies must be maintained either as cash in the School District treasury, in commercial
accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or
in money markel deposit accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits that the Board has identified as not required for use within the current five
year period of designation of depositories. [nactive deposits must either be evidenced by certificates of deposit
maturing not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositorics, or by savings or deposit
accounts including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies which are not needed for
immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories.
Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit maturing not more than one year from the
date of deposit or by savings or deposit accounts, including passbook accounts.

Interim monies held by the School District can be deposited or invested in the following securities:
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. United States Treasury bills, bonds, notes, or any other obligation or security issued by the United
States Treasury, or any other ohligation guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States;

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligation or security issued by any federal government agency
or instrumentality including, but not limited to, the Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal
Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Morigage Corporation,
Governiment National Mortgage Association, and Student Loan Marketing Association.  All federal
agency securities shalt be direct issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities;

3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above;
4. Bonds and other obligations of the State of Olio;

5. Time certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts including, but not limited to, passbook
accounts,

6. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in division (1) or
2

7. The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAR Ohio); and
8. Comunercial paper and bankers acceptances if training requirements have been met.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements, and derivatives are
prohibited, The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage, and short selling are
also prohibited. Investinents may only be made through specified dealers and institutions.

Deposits

Custodiul Credit Risk  Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the School
District will not be able to recover deposits or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party.
At fiscal year end, $2,529,980 of the School District’s bank balance of $3,189,697 was uninsured and
uncollateralized. Although the securities were held by the pledging financial institutions’ trust department and
all statutory requirements for the deposit of money had been followed, noncompliance with Federal
requirements could potentially subject the School District to a successful claim by the FDIC.

The School District has no deposit policy for custodial risk beyond the requirements of State statute. Ohio law
requires that deposits be either insured or be protected by eligible securities pledged to and deposited either
with the School District or a qualified trustee by the financial institution as security for repayment, or by a
collateral pool of eligible securities deposited with a qualified trustee and pledged to secure the repayment of
all public monies deposited in the financial institution whose markef value at all times shall be at least one
hundred five percent of the deposits being secured.

Investments

As of June 30, 2011, the School District had STAR Ohio as the only investment with an amount of $49,526
and an average maturity of 58 days.

Credit Risk Ohio law requires that STAR Ohio maintain the highest rating provided by al least one nationally
recognized standard rating service. The School District has no investment policy that addresses credit risk.
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Interest Rate Risk The School District has no investment policy that addresses interest rate risk. State statute
requires that an investment mature within five years from the date purchase, unless matched (o a specific
obligation or debt of the School District, and that an investiment must be purchased with the expectation that it
will be held to maturity,

Note 6 - Property Taxes

Property taxes arc levied and assessed on a calendar year basis while the School District’s fiscal year runs
from July through June. First half tax collections are received by the School District in the second half of the
fiscal year. Second half tax distributions oceur in the first half of the following fiscal year.

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real property, public utility property and tangtble personal
property (used in business) located in the School District. Real property tax revenues received in calendar year
2011 represents collections of calendar year 2010 taxes. Real property taxes received in calendar year 201 |
were levied after April 1, 2010, on the assessed value listed as of January 1, 2000, the lien date. Assesscd
values for real property are established by State law at thirly-five percent of appraised market value, Real
property are payable annuaily or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is due December 3 1; if paid semi-
annually, the first payment is due December 31 with the remainder payable by June 20. Under certain
circumstances, State statute permits alternate payment dates to be established.

Public utility property tax revenues received in calendar year 201 | represents collections of calendar year 2010
taxes. Public utility real and tanpible personal property taxes received in calendar year 2011 become a lien
December 31, 2009, were levied after April 1, 2010 and are collected in 2011 with real property taxes. Public
utility real property is assessed at thirty-five percent of true value; public utility tangible personal property
currently is assessed at varying percentages of true value.

Tangible personal property tax revenues received in calendar year 2011 (other than public utility property)
represent the collection of calendar year 2011 taxes levied apainst local and inter-exchange telephone
companies. Tangible personal property faxes received from telephone companies in calendar ycar 2011 were
levied after October 1, 2010, on the value as of December 31, 2010. Payments by multi-county taxpayers are
due September 20. Single county taxpayers may pay annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is
due April 30; if paid semi-annually, the first payment is due April 30, with the remainder payable by
September 20. Tangible personal property taxes paid by April 30 are usually received by the School District
prior to June 30.

The School District receives property taxes from Geauga County. The County Auditor periodically advances
to the School District its portion of the taxes collected. Second-half real property tax payments collected by the
County by June 30, 2011, are available to finance fiscal year 2011 operations. The amount available to be
advanced can vary based on the date the tax bills are sent.

Accrued property taxes receivable includes real property, public utility property and tangible personal properts
taxes which are measurable as of June 30, 2011 and for which there is an enlorceable legal claim. Although
total property tax collections for the next fiscal year are measurable, only the amount of real property taxes
available as an advance at June 30 were [evied to finance current fiscal year operations are reported as vevenue
at fiscal year-end. The portion of the receivable not levied to finance current fiscal year operations is offset bv
a credit to deferred revenue.
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The amount available as an advance at Junc 30, 2011 was $377,381 in the general fund and $19,829 in the
permanent improvement capital projects fund. The amount available as an advance at June 30, 2010, was
$351,017 in the general fund and $18,380 in the permanent improvement capital projects fund.

On a full accrual basis, collectible delinquent property taxes have been recorded as a receivable and revenue,
while on a medifted accrual basis the revenue has been deferred.

The assessed values upon which the fiscal year 2011 taxes were collected are:

2010 Second 2011 First
Half Collections Half Collections
Amount Percent Amount Percent

Agricultural/Residential

and Other Real Estate $213,449,110 97.58 % $213,572,790 97.54 %
Public Utility Personal 5,284,160 242 5,390,330 2.46
Tolal $218,733,270 [00.00 % $218,963,120 100.00 %
FFull tax rate per $1,000 of

assessed valuation $52.30 $52.30

Note 7- Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2011, consisted of taxes, accounts (rent, studenl fees and tuition) and
intergovernmental grants. All receivables arc considered collectible in full due to the ability to foreclose for
the nonpayment of taxes, the stable condition of State programs, and the current year puarantee of federal
funds. All receivables, except for delinquent property taxes, are expected to be collected within one year.
Property taxes, although ultimately collectible, include some portion of delinquencies thal will not be collected
within one year. At June 30, 2011, the general and food service special revenue funds had intergovernmental
receivables of $11,963 and $768 respectively.

Note 8 - Income Tax

The School District levies a voted tax of | percent for general operations on the earned income of residents
and of estates. The tax was effective on January I, 2008, and is a continuing tax. Employers of residents are
required to withhold income tax on compensation and remit the tax to the Stale. Taxpayers are required to file
an annual return. The State makes quarterly distributions to the School District after withholding amounts for
adminisirative fees and estimated refunds, Income tax revenue is credited to the general fund.

Note 9 — Fund Balances

Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and/or unassighed based primarily
on the extent to which the School District is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the government funds. The constraints placed on fund balance for the major governmental funds
and all other governiental funds are presenied below:
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Nonmajor
Governmental
Fund Balances General Funds Total

Nouspendable

Inventory $2,029 $8,211 $10,240
Restricted for

Budget Stabilization 39,468 0 39,468
Unclaimed Funds 1,577 0 1,577
Food Service Operations 0 56,720 56,720
Education Jobs 0 7,042 7,042
Vocational Education 0 251 251
Permanent Improvements 0 194,660 194,660
Total Restricted 41,045 258,673 299,718
Assigned to

Other Purposes 888,474 0 888,474
Unassigned (Deficil) 1,137,575 (425) 1,137,150
Total Fund Balances $2,069,123 $266,459 $2,335,582

Note 10 - Contingencics

A, Grants

The School District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The
disbursement of funds received under these programms generally requires compliance with terms and conditions
specified in the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the general fund or other applicable funds. However, in
the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall
financial position of the School District at June 30, 201 1.

B. Litigation

The School District is party to legal proceedings. The School District is of the opinion that ultimate
disposition of claims will not have a material effect, if any on the financial condition of the School District.

Note 11 — Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201 1, was as follows:
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Balance

Balance

June 30, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011
Nondepreciable Capital Asscts
Land 53,810 %0 $0 $13,810
Depreciable Capital Assets
Land Improvements 203,261 0 0 203,261
Buildings and Improvements 3,468,779 0 0 5,468,779
Furniture and Fixtures 1,140,110 0 Q0 1,140,110
Vehicles 867,099 74,500 0 941,599
Total at Historical Cost 7,679,249 74,500 0 7,753,749
Less: Accumulated Depreeiation
Land Improvements (113,360) (7,287) 0 (120,647)
Buildings and Inprovements (2,743,450) {64,348) 0 (2,807,798)
Furniturc and Fixlures (867,097) {44,409) 0 (911,5006)
Vehicles {450,909) {72,049) 0 (522,958)
Totad Accumulated Depreciation (4,174,816) {188,093) * 0 {4,362,909)
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net
of Accumulated Depreciation 3,504,433 (115,593) 0 3,390,840
Govermmental Activities Capital
Asvets, Net $3,518,243 {$113,593) $ﬂ_ $3.404,650_.
* Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as foliows:
Instroction:
Regular $85,693
Support Services:
Instructional Staff 3,228
Administration 6,528
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 12,316
Pugil Transportation 71,592

Operation of Food Services 1,124

Extracurricular Activities 7,612
Total Depreciation Expense $188,093
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Note 12 - Risk Management
A. Praperty and Linbifity

The School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
asscls; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2011, the School
District participated in the Ohio Schools Council insurance program which contracted with Ohio Casualty.
Ohio Casualty acts as the carrier and the coverage provided is as follows:

Typc of Coverage Amounl

Building and Contents - replacement cost $24,978.27]
Crime Insurance 50,000
Theft 75,000
Automobile Liability ~ 1,000,000
Uninsured Motorists 1,000,000
General Liability

Per Qccurrence 1,000,000

Total per year 2,000,000
Commercial Umbrella 5,000,000

Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years and there has not
been a significant reduction in coverage from the prior year,

B. Workers’ Compensation

For fiscal year 2011, the School District participated in the Ohio Association of School Business Officials
Workers” Compensation Group Rating Program (GRP), an insurance purchasing pool (Note 19). The intent of
the GRI" is to achieve the benefit of a reduced premium for the School District by virtue of its grouping and
representation with other participants in the GRP. The workers™ compensation experience of the participating
school districts is calculated as one experience and a common premium rate is applied to all schoel districts in
the GRP. Each participant pays its workers’ compensation premiwm (o the State based on the rate for the GRP
rather than its individual rate. Participation in the GRP is limited to school districts that can meet the GRP’s
selection criteria. The firm of Sheakley UniService provides administrative, cost contrel and actuarial services
to the GRP.

C. Other Eniployec Benefits

The School District has elected to provide dental and prescription coverage benefits through a self-insurance
program. The School District maintains a self-insurance internal service fund to account for and finance its
uninsured risks of loss in this program. A third party administrator, Guardian Insurance, located in Cleveland,
Ohto, reviews all dental claims which are then paid by the School District. A specific excess loss coverage
(stop-loss) insurance policy covers claims in excess of $125,000 per employee, per year.

The claims liability of $18,364 reported in the internal service fund at June 30, 2011 is based on the
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 30 which requires that a liability
for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating to incurred bul not reported claims, be reported.
The estimate was not affected by incremental claim adjustment expenses and does not include other allocated
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Note 12 - Risk Management
A. Property and Liability

The School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; ervors and cmnissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2011, the School
District participated in the Ohio Schools Council insurance program which contracted with Ohio Casualty.
Ohio Casualty acts as the carrier and the coverage provided is as follows:

Type of Coverage Amount

Building and Contents - replacement cost $24,978,271
Crime Insurance 50,000
Theft 75,000
Automobile Liability 1,000,000
Uninsured Motorists 1,000,000
General Liability

Per Occurrence 1,000,000

Total per year 2,000,000
Commercial Umbrella 5,000,000

Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years and there has not
been a significant reduction in coverage from the prior year.

B. Workers’ Compensation

For fiscal year 2011, the School District participated in the Ohio Association of School Business Officials
Workers’ Compensation Group Rating Program (GRP), an insurance purchasing pool (Note 19). The intent of
the GRP is to achieve the benefit of a reduced premium for the School District by virtue of its grouping and
representation with other participants in the GRP. The workers’ compensation experience of the participating
schoo] districts is calculated as one experience and a common premium rate is applied to all school districts in
the GRP. Lach participant pays its workers® compensation premium to the State bascd on the rate for the GRP
rather than its individual rate. Participation in the GRP is limited to schoel districts that can ineet the GRP’s
selection criteria. The firm of Sheakley UniService provides administrative, cost control and actuarial services

to the GRP.
C. Other Employee Benefits

The School District has elected to provide dental and prescription coverage benefits through a self-insurance
prograin. The School District maintains a self-insurance infernal service fund to account for and finance its
uninsured risks of loss in this program. A third party administrator, Guardian Insurance, located in Cleveland,
Ohio, reviews all dental claims which are then paid by the School District. A specific excess loss coverage
(stop-loss) insurance policy covers claims in excess of $125,000 per employee, per year.

The claims liability of $18,364 reported in the internal service fund at June 30, 2011 is based on the
requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 30 which requires that a liability
for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating to incurced but not reported claims, be reported.
The estimate was not affected by incremental claim adjustment expenses and does not include other allocated
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or unallocated claim adjustment expenses. Manageinent’s expectation is the claims liabilities will be paid
within one year. Changes in the fund's claims liability amount for 2010 and 2011 weve:

Balance at Current
Beginning Year Claim Balance at
of Year Claims Payments End of Year
2010 $20,997 $365,708 $367,774 $18,931
2011 18,931 401,917 402,484 18,364

Note 13 - Employee Benefits
A. Compensated Absences

The criteria for determining vacation and sick leave benefits are derived from negotiated agreements and State
laws. Classilied employces earn ten to twenty days of vacation per fiscal year, depending upon length of
service, Accumulated, unused vacation time is paid to classified employees and administrators upon
termination of employment. Teachers do not earn vacation time.

Teachers, administrators, and classified employees earn sick leave at the rate of one and one-fourth days per
month. Sick leave may be accumulated up to a maximum of 325 days for all personnel. Upon retirement,
payment is made for one-fourth of accrued, but unused sick leave credit to a maximum of 75 days.

B. Life / Medical Insurance

The School District provides life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment insurance to most
employees through Guardian. The School District has elected to provide enployee medical/surgical benefits
through Medical Mutual.

C. Relirement Incentive

The School District Board of Education offers employees participation in a Retirement Incentive progran.
Participation is open to employees who are eligible for service retirement under the State Teachers Retirement
System (STRS) and School Employees Retirement System (SERS). Each employee who qualifics for and
takes retirement must notify the Board in writing of the employee’s intention prior to April 30. The employee
recetves a retirement incentive of 20 percent of the employee’s last year’s salary. The incentive is paid upon
retirement.

Balance at

Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions  Deductions  End of Year
General Fund $16,900 $17,024 $16,900 $17,024
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Note 14 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans
A. School Emplovees Retireinent Systent

Plan Description - The School District contributes to the School Employecs Retirement System (SERS), a
cost-sharing multiple employer pension plan. SERS provides retivement, disability, and survivor benefits,
anntial cost-of-living adjustiments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish
and amend benefits is provided by State Statutc per Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised Code. SERS issues a
publicly available, stand-alone financial report that includes financial statemenis and required supplementary
information. Thal report can be obtained by contacting SERS, 300 East Broad Stieet, Suite 100, Columbus.
Ohio 43215-3746 or by calling toll free (800) 878-5853. It is also posted on SERS' website at www.ohsers.org
under Employers/Audit Resources.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 10 percent of their annval covered salary and
Berkshire Local School District is required to contribute 14 percent of annual covered payroll. The
contribution requirements of plan members and employers are established and may be amended, up to
statutory maximum amouunfs, by the SERS' Retirement Board. The Retirement Board acting with the advice of
the actuary, allocates the employer contribution rate among four of the funds (Pension Trust Fund, Death
Benefit Fund, Medicare B Fund, and Health Care Fund) of the System. For fiscal year ending June 30, 2011,
the allocation 1o pension and death benefits is 11.81 percent. The remaining 2.19 percent of the 14 percent
employer contribution rate is allocated to the Health Care and Medicare B Funds. The School District’s
required contributions for pension obligations to SERS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2001, 2010 and
2009 were $171,236, $181,633, and $135,985, respectively; 56.02 percent has been conlributed for fiscal year
2011, with the balance being reported as an intergovernmental payable. The Full amount has been contributed
for fiscal years 2010 and 2009,

B. State Teachers Retirement System

Plan Description - The School District participates in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS
Olio), a cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement plan. STRS Ohio provides retirement and
disability benefits to members and death and surviver benefits to bencficiaries. STRS QOhio issues a stand-
alone financial report that may be obtained by writing to STRS Ohio, 275 E. Broad St., Columbus, OH 43215-
3771, by calling (888) 227-7877, or by visiting the STRS Ohio Web site at www.strsoh.org.

New members have a choice of three retirement plans, a Defined Benefil (DB) Plan, a Defined Contribution
(DC) Plan and a Combined Plan. The DB plan offers an annual retirement allowaince based on final average
salary limes a percentage that varies based on years of service, or an atlowance based on a member’s lifetime
contributions and earned interest matched by STRS Ohio funds divided by an actuarially determined annuity
factor. The DC Plan allows members (o place all their member contributions and employer contributions equal
to 10.5 percent of earnec compensation into an investment account. Investment decisions are made by the
member. A member is eligible to receive a retirement benefit at age 50 and termination of employment. The
member may elect to receive a lifetime monthly annuity or a lump sum withdrawal. The Combined Plan offers
features of both the DC Plan and the DB Plan. In the Combined Plan, member contributions are invested by
the member, and employer contributions are used to fund the defined benefit payment at a reduced level from
the regular DB Plan. The DB portion of the Combined Plan payment is payable to a member on or after age
60; the DC portion of the account may be taken as a lump sum or converted to a lifetime monthly annuity at
age 50. Benefits are established by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code,

A DB or Combined Plan member with five or more years crediled service who becomes disabled may qualify
for a disability benefit. Eligible spouses and dependents of these active members who die before retirement
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may qualify for survivor benefits. Members in the DC Plan who become disabled are entitled only to their
account balance. It a member of the DC Plan dies before retirement benefits begin, the member’s designated
beneficiary is entitled to receive the member's account balance.

Funding Policy - For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, plan members were required to contribute 10 percent
of their annual covered salaries.

The Schoel District was required to contribute [4 percent; 13 percent was the portion used to fund pension
obligations. Contribution rates are established by the State Teachers Retirement Board, upon recommendations
of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates of 10 percent for members and 14 percent for
cmployers. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code provides statutory autherity for member and employer
contributions. The School District’s required contributions for pension obligations to STRS Ohio for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009, were $639,654, $643,094, and $573,936, respectively; 79.93
percent has been contributed for fiscal year 2011, with the balance being reported as an intergovernmental
payable. The full amount has been contributed for fiscal years 2010 and 2009, Contributions to the DC and
Combined Plans for fiscal year 2010 (the latest information available) were $15,059 made by the Scheol
District and $16,154 made by the plan members.

C. Social Security Sysiem

Effective July 1, 1991, all emptoyees not otherwise covered by the School Employees Retirement System or
the State Teachers Relirement System of Ohio have an option to choose Social Security or the School
Retirement System. As of June 30, 2011, one member of the Board of Education has elected Social Security.
The contribution rate is 6.2 percent of wages.

Note 15 — Postemployment Benefits

A. School Employee Retirement System

Plan Description — The School District participates in two cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit
OPEB plans administered by the School Employees Retirement System for non-certificated retirees and their
benefliciaries, a Health Care Plan and a Medicare Part B Plan. The Health Care Plan includes hospitalization
and physicians' fees through several types of plans including HMO’s, PPQO’s and traditional indemnity plans as
well as a prescription drag program. The Medicare Part B Plan retmburses Medicare Part B premiums paid by
eligible retirees and beneficiaries up to a slatutory limit. Benefit provisions and the obligations to contribute
are established by the System based on authority granted by State statute. The financial reports of both Plans
are included in the SERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which is available by contacting SERS at
300 East Broad St,, Suite 100, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3746.

Funding Policy — State Statute permits SERS to fund the health care benefits through employer contributions,
Each year, after the allocation for statutorily required benefits, the Retirement Board allocates the remainder of
the employer contribution of 14 percent of covered payroll to the Health Care Fund. The Health Care Fund
was established and is administered in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 40110, For 2011, 1.43
percent of covered payroll was allocated to health care. In addition, employers pay a surcharge for employees
carning less than an actuarially determined amount; for 2011, this amount was $35,800. During fiscal year
2011, the School District paid $22,737.
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Active employes members do not contribute to the Health Care lan. Retirees and their bencliciaries are
required fo pay a health care premium that varies depending on the plan selected, the number of qualified years
of service, Medicare eligibility and retirement status.

The School District’s contributions for health care for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009,
were $20,734, $7,128, $62,233, respectively; 56.02 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 2011 and 100
percent for fiscal years 2010 and 2009.

The Retirement Board, acting with advice of the actuary, allocates a portion of the employer contribution to
the Medicare B Fund. For 201 |, this actuarially required allocation was 0.76 percent of covered payroll. The
School District’s contributions for Medicare Part B for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009,
were $11,019, $10,693, and $11,220, respectively; 56.01 percent has heen contributed for fiscal year 2011,
with the balance being reported as an intergovernmental payable. The full amount has been contributed for
fiscal years 2010 and 2009.

B. State Teachers Retirement Systeni

Plan Description — The School District contributes to the cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit
[ealth Plan administered by the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio) for eligible retirees
who participated in the defined benefit or combined pension plans offered by STRS Ohio. Benefits include
hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription drugs and reimbursement of monthly Medicare Part B premiums,
The Plan is included in the report of STRS Ohio which may be obtained by visiting www.slrsoh.org or by
calling (888) 227-7877.

Funding Policy — Ohio law authorizes STRS OChio to offer the Plan and gives the Retirement Board authority
over how much, ifany, of the health care costs will be absorbed by STRS Ohio. Active employee members do
not contribute to the Plan. All benefit recipients pay a monthly premtum. Under Ohio law, funding for post-
employment health care may be deducted from employer contributions, For 2010, STRS Ohio allocated
employer contributtons equal to 1 percent of covered payroll to the Health Care Stabilization Fund. The
School District’s contributions for health care for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009, were
$48.046, $48,310, and $44,874, respectively; 79.93 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 2011, with the
balance being reported as an intergovernmental payable. The full amount has been contributed for fiscal years
2010 and 2009,

Note 16 - Long Term Obligations

The changes in the School Districl’s long-tertn obligations during the year consist of the following:

Principal Principal Amount
Outstanding Qutstanding Due in
06/30/10 Additions Reductions (6/30/11 One Year
Governmental Activities
Compensated Absences $874,939 $274,615 5122,498 $1,027,056 $279,315

The compensated absences payable will be paid from the general fund and the food service and the class size
reduction grant special revenue funds,

The School District’s overall debt margin was $19,221,551 with an unvoted debt margin of $213,573 at June
30,2011,
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Note 17 - Jointly Governed Organizations

A. Auburn Career Ceriter

The Auburn Career Center is a joint vocational school district which is a jointly governed organization among
eleven School Districts. Fach participating school dislrict appoints one member to the Aubum Career Center’s
Board of Education. The students of each participating school district may attend classes offered at the
vocational facility. Each pacticipant’s control over the operation of the Auburn Career Center is limited to its
representation on the Board. Continued existence of the Auburn Career Center is not dependent on the School
District’s continued participation. Financial information can be obtained from the Auburn Carcer Center, 8140
Auburn Road, Painesville, Ohio 44077,

B. Lake Geauga Compunter Association

The Lake Geauga Computer Association (the “LGCA”) is a jointly governed organization that was formed for
the purpose of providing computer services for accounting, grading, scheduling, EMIS and other applications
to its eighteen member school districts. Rach of the districts supports LGCA based upon a per pupil charge.
The executive committee (governing board) consists of the superintendents and treasurers of the member
school districts. The degree of control exercised by any participating school district is limited to its
representation on the governing board. LGCA’s continued existence is not dependent on the School District’s
continued participation. During fiscal year 2011, the School District paid $36,694 to LGCA. Financial
information can be obtained fromn the Lake Geauga Computer Association, 8221 Aubum Road, Painesville,

Oliio 44077,
C. Ohio Sclivols Conuncil Association

The Ohio Schools Council Association (Council) is a jointly governed organization ameong 126 school districts.
The jointly governed organization was created by school districts for the purpose of saving money through volume
purchases. Each district supports the Council by paying an annval participation fee. Each school district member’s
superintendent serves as a representative of the Assembly., The Assembly elects five of the Council’s Board
members and the remaining four are representatives of the Greater Cleveland School Superintendents’ Association.
The Council operates under a nine-imember Board of Directors (the Board). The Board is the policy making
authority of the Council. The Board meets monthly September to June. The Board appoints an Executive Direetor
who is responsible for receiving and disbursing funds, investing available funds, preparing financial reports for the
Board and Assembly and carrying out such other responsibilities as designated by the Board. In fiscal year 2011,
the Scheol District paid $3,25] to the Council. Financial information can be obtained by contacting Dr. David A.
Cottrell, the Executive Director of thc Ohio Schools Council at 6133 Rockside Road, Suite [0, Independence, Ohio
4431,

The School District participates in the natural gas purchase programn. This program allows the School District
to purchase natural gas at reduced rates. Compass Energy has been selected as the supplier and programn
manager for the period from October 1, 2010 through March 31, 2013, There are currently 143 partictpants in
the program including the Berkshire School District. The participants make monthly payments based on
estimated usage. Baclh September, these estimated payments are compared to their actval usage for the year
(July to June)}. Districts that paid more in estitnated billings than their actual billings are issued credits on
future billings beginning in September until the credits are exhausted and districts that did not pay enough on
estimated billings are invoiced for the difference on the September monthly estimated billing.
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Note 18 - Related Organization

Burton Public Livrary The Burton Public Library is a distinct political subdivision of the State of Ohio
created under Chapter 3375 of the Ohio Revised Code. The Library is governed by a Board of Trustees
appointed by the Berkshire Local School District Board of Education. The Board of Trustees possesses its
own contracting and budgeting authority, hires and fires personnel and does not depend on the School District
for operational subsidies. Although the School District does serve as the taxing authority and may issue tax
related debt on behalf of the Library, its role is limited to a ministerial tunction. The determination to request
approval of a tax, the rate and the purpose are discretionary decistons made solely by the Board of Trustees.
Financial information can be obtained from the Burton Public Library, Rebecca Herrick Clerl/Treasurer, PO
Box 427, Burton, Ohio 44021.

Note 19 - Insurance Purchasing Pool

The School District participates in a group rating plan for workers’ compensation as established under Section
4123.29 of the Ohio Revised Code. The Ohio Association of School Business Officials Workers’
Compensation Group Rating Program (GRP) was established through the Ohio Association of School
Business Officials (OASBO) as a group purchasing pool. The Executive Director of the OASBA, or his
designee, serves as coordinator of the GRP. Each year, the participating school districts pay an enrollment fee
to the GRRP to cover the costs of administering the program.

Note 20 - Set Asides

The School District is required by State statute to annually set aside in the general fund an amount based on a
statutory formula for the purchase of textbooks and other instructional materials and an equal amount for the
acquisition and construction of capital improvements. Amounts not spent by the end of the fiscal year or
offset by similarly restricted resources rcceived during the year must be held in cash at year end. These
amounts must be carried forward to be used for the same purposes in future years. In prior years, the School
District was also required to set aside money for budget stabilization. At June 30, 2011, only the unspent
portion of certain workers’ compensation refunds continues to be set aside.

The following cash basis information describes the change in the fiscal year end sei aside amounts for
textbooks, capital acquisition, and budget stabilization. Disclosure of this information is required by State
stalute.

Budget Capital Textbook
Stabilization Improvements Instructional
Reserve Reserve Materials Reserve
Set-aside Reserve Balance as of June 30, 2010 $39468 50 ($2,08 1,464)
Current Year Set-aside Requireinent 0 165,423 165,423
Qualifying Disbursements 0 {537,580) {173,244)
Totals $39,468 ($372,163) ($2,089,285)
Sct-aside Balance Carried Forward
to Future Fiscal Years $39,468 30 ($2,089,285)
Set-aside Reserve Balance as of June 30, 2011 F30 468 $0 $0
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The School District had qualifying disbursements during the fiscal year that reduced the set-aside amount fo
below zero for the capital acquisition and textbook set-asides. The extra amount in the textbook set-aside may
be used to reduce the set-aside requirement of future years. The extra amount in the capital acquisition set-
aside may not be used to reduce the set-aside requirement of future years. This negative balance is therefore
not presented as being carried forward to future years. The total reserve balance for the three set-asides at the
end of the [iscal year was $39,468.

Note 21 — Interfund Transfers and Balances
Imterfund Transfers
Transfers made during the year ended June 30, 201] were as follows:

Transfers From

Transfers To General

Internal Service Fund:
Self Insurance $250,000

Toral Transfers $250,000

The franster from the general fund to the self insurance fund was used to pay health and dental insurance
claims.

Interfund Baluncey

Advances made during the year ended June 30, 2011 were as follows:

Advances Advances
Funds: Our In
General Fund $20,000 30
Other Governmental Funds;
Music and Athletics 0 20,000
Total Advances $20,000 $20,000

This loan was made to supporl the music and athletic programs. These loans are expected to be repaid in one
year.

Note 22 — Fund Defieits

At June 30, 2011, the athletics and music fund had a [und deficit of $425. The deficit balance resulted froin
adjustments for accrued liabilities. The gencral fund is liable for any deficit in this fund and provides transfers
when cash is required, not when accruals oceur.
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Cowmbining Statements and Individual Fund Schedules

Combining Statements - Nonmajor Governmental Fuinds

Noumajor Special Revetne Fundy
Special Revenue funds are established to account for revenues from specific sources which legally, or otherwise,
are restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. A description of the School District's special revenue funds

follows:

Food Service Fund This fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the food service operations of
the School District,

Oiher Grants Fund This fund accounts for monies received to promote community involvement and to
support activities between the school and the community.

Athiletics aund Music Fund This fund accounts for gate receipts and other revenues from athletic events and all
costs (except supplemental coaching contracts) of the School District's athletic program and transportation of the
band to and from athletic events.

Educational Management Inforuation Systems Fuud This fund accounts for State monies which support the
development of hardware and software or other costs associated with the requirements of the management
information system.

ONEnet Fund This fund accounts for State monies to assist teachers in improving their technology skills.

Title IH-D Fnnd This fund accounts for Federal monies used for costs associated with English proficiency.
Fiseal Stabilization Fund This fund accounts for Federal monies fiom the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act in State Fiscal Stabilization Funds (SFSF) to help stabilize state and focal budgets in order to
minimize and avoid reductions in education and other essential services.

Title VI-B Fund This fund accounts for Federal monies used to assist schools in the identification of
handicapped children, development of procedural safeguards, and provision of full educational opportunities to

handicapped children at the preschool, elementary, and secondary levels,

Title I Fund This fund accounts for Federal monies used to assist the School District in meeting the special
needs of educationally deprived children.

Education Jobs Frud This fund accounts tor Federal monies used to retain education jobs.
Title H-D Fund This fund accounts for State monies to assist staff in gaining lmowledge of technology.

Drug Free Schools Grant Fund This fund secounts for Federal monies which support the implementation of
programs for drug abuse education and prevention.

Class Size Reduction Grant Fnud  This fund aceounts for Federal monies used to reduce class size in
clementary schools.
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Combining Balenca Sheet
Nowmmuajor Special Revenue Frnds

Jine 30, 2011

Asscts
Equity in Pooled Cash and

Cash Equivalents
Intergovernimenlal Receivabte
Inventory Held for Resale
Materials and Supplies Inventory

Total Assets

Liahilittey and Frund Balunces
Liabilities

Accuunts Mayable

Accrued Wages and Benelils
Interfund Payable
Intergovernmental Payable

Total Liabilities
I'und Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted

Unassigned (Delicit)

Totad Fund Balances (Deficil)

Total Liabilities and Fund Delances

Food Other Athletics
Service Grants and Music
$111,593 $452 $20.852

768 0 ]
6,888 0 0

_ 1,323 0 0
$120,572 $432 $20.852
$0 $201 81,277
20,858 0 0

0 0 20,000

14,783 0 1]
55,641 201 21,277
8,211 ¢ 0
56,720 251 0

0 (t (425)

64,031 251 (425)
$120,572 F452 $20,852
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Tolal

Nonmajor

Special

Education Revenne

Title 1 Jobs Funds
$1,061 $7.042 $141,000
n 0 768
0 0 6,888

0 &) 1,323
- 51,061 $7,042 5149979
$1,061 f0 $2,539
0 0 20,858
0 1] 20,000

] 0 34,783
1,061 G 78,180

0 0 8211
0 7,042 64,013
0 0 (425)

0 7,042 71,799
$1,061 $7.042 $149,979
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Nonmajor Special Revenie Funds
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Revennes

Infergovemnental

Tuition and Feey
Exiracurricular Activilies
Confributions and Donations
Charges for Services

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Curcent:
Ingtruction:
Regular
Special
Voeational
Support Scrvices:
Pupit
Instructional Staft
Adminisiration
Pupil Transporlation
Operation of Food Services
Extracurricular Activitics

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenies Over
(Undler) Expenditures

Other Financing Sonrces
Transfers In

Net Change In Fund Balances

Fund Baiances Beginning of Year

Frwid Balances (Deficit) End of Year

Edlucational

Management

Food Other Alhlctics Information
Service Grants and Music Systenis

$87,046 $0 50 $5,000

0 0 0 0

0 0 55,289 0

0 1,340 5,264 0

138,066 0 0 0

225,112 1,340 40,553 5,000

0 888 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 201 0 0

0 0 0 5,000

0 0 0 0

0 ] 0 0

0 0 0 0

279,864 0 0 0

1} 0 62,325 0

279,864 1,089 62,325 5,000

(54,752) 251 (1,772) 0

0 0 0 0

(54,752) 251 (1,772) 0

119,683 0 1,347 0

$64,931 $251 ($425_) $0
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Fiscal

OMEnet Title 11L-D Stabilization Title VI-B Title [

$4,550 $504 $245,692 $261,900 $220,475
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 o 0
4,550 504 245,692 261,900 220475
0 564 247 892 0 0

0 0 0 195,127 221,249

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 30,607 0

0 0 0 42 501
4,530 0 0 36,200 0
0 0 0 0 0

Q 4] 0 0 4]

0 0 4] Q 0
4,550 564 247,892 261,976 221,750
0 0 (2,200) (76) (1,275)

0 0 0 0 ]
0 0 (2,200) (76) (1,275)

0 0 2,200 76 1275

50 $0 $0 $0 $0

(conlinued)
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Berkshire Local School District
Combining Stalenent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Bulances
Nernmajor Speclal Revenue Frinds (contined)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Totat
Drug Free Class Size Nonmajor
Educaticn Schools Reduclion Special Revenue
Tobs Title [1-13 Grant Cirant Funds
Revenues
Intergovernmental $161,648 fal6 $o $48,357 $1,035,848
Tuition and Fees 0 0 0 0 0
Extracurriculay Activities 0 0 0 0 55,289
Contributions and Donationg 0 0 0 0 6,604
Charges for Services - 0 0 0 0 138,066
Total Revenes 161,648 616 0 48,357 1,235,807
Expenditures
Current;
Instruction;
Regular 154,600 0 2,036 48,357 454,343
Special 0 0 0 0 416,376
Vocational 0 0 0 0 201
Support Services:
Pupil 0 0 0 0 35,607
Instructional Staff Q 610 0 0 1,159
Administration 0 0 ¢ 0 40,750
Pupil Transpertation ¢ 0 0 0 0
Operation of Food Services 0 0 0 0 279,864
Extracurricular Activities 0 Q 0 0 62,325
Total Expenditures 154,606 616 2,036 48,357 [,290,625
Excess of Revernees Over
(Under) Expenditires 7,042 0 (2,036} 0 (54,818)
Other Finaneing Sourees
Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0
Net Change in Fuind Balances 7,042 0 (2,036} ¢ (54,818)
Fund Balences Beginning of Year 0 0 2,036 0 126,617
Fund Balances (Deficit) End of Year 37,042 30 08 §71,799
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Combining Statements - Fiduciary Funds

Agency Funds

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The fiduciary fund category is split
into four classifications: pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private purpose trust funds and agency
funds. Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the School District under a trust agreement for
individuals, private organizations or other governments and therefore not available to support the Sclicol
District’s own programs. Agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal Jiabilities) and thus do not involve
measurement of results or operations. A description of the School District's agency funds follows:

Student Activities Fund This fund reflects resources that belong to the student bodies of the various schools,
accounting for sales and other revenus generating activities.

Elementary Fund This fund reflects resources that belong to the student bodies of the vavious schools,
accounting for sales and other revenue generating activities.
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Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liahilities
All Agency Funds
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Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
6/30/10 Additions Deductions 6/30/11
Student Activities
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash
and Cash Equivalents $46,845 $64,619 $72,075 $39.389
Liabilities
Due to Students $40,617 364,619 $72,075 $33,161
Undistribuied Monies 0,228 0 0 6,228
Total Liabilities $40,8435 $64.619 $72,075 §$39,389
Elementary
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash
and Cash Equivalents $2,767 $638 $471 $2,934
Liabilities
Undistributed Maonies 2,767 3638 $471 32,934
Total - All Agency Fuuds
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash
and Cash Equivalents $49.612 $65,257 572,546 $42,323
Liabilities
Due to Students $40.617 $64.619 $72,075 $33,161
Undistributed Monies 8,995 638 471 9,162
Total Liabilities $49.612 $65,257 §72.546 42,323
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Berkshire Local School District
Schedule of Revemes, Lxpencitures and Changes
tn Fund Balunce - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues

Income Taxes

Property Taxcs
Intergovernmental

Interest

Tuition and Fees
Extracurricular Aclivities
Contributions and Donalions
RRenlals

Miscellancous

Toted! Revennes

Expenditures
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:

Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefils
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutlay - New

Tolal Regular

Special:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benelils
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies

Tolal Special

Vocational:
Salaries and Wapes
Fringe Benefits
Malterials and Supplies

Tolal Vocational

Student Inlervention Services:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benelits
Materials and Supplics

Total Student Inlervention Services

Total 1nstruclion

Budgeted Amounts

Yariance wilh
[Final Budgel

Pusitive

Original Final Actual (Megative)
$1,577,032 $1,626,657 $1,626,657 F0
3,944,797 4,104,143 4,104,143 (
4,516,022 4,496,094 4,500,422 3,428
12,000 9214 9,820 606
212,500 467,152 397,999 9,153)
113,098 152,602 154619 2.017

0 16,640 14,771 {(1,86%)
0 2,000 2,000 0

40,903 28,666 28,166 (500)
10,436,152 10,844,008 10,838,597 (5471)
3.007,289 2,874,488 2,861,878 12,610
991,767 864,547 856,382 7,965
485,378 614,652 608,196 6,450
95,520 91,108 87,456 3,652
19,066 13,072 13,072 0
4,599,020 4,457,867 4,427,184 30,683
676,296 455,514 446,610 9,504
67,521 127,480 122,231 5,249
546,416 882,899 811,373 71,526
1,300 2,504 2,388 16

1,291,733 1,468,397 1.382.002 86,395
57,550 56,950 56,638 32
5,828 13,7062 13,290 472
3,240 1,078 1,076 2
ah.618 71,790 71,004 786
156,894 158,793 £58,562 231
34,474 33,953 51,859 2,094

3,242 42 42 0
194,610 212,788 210,463 2,325
36,151,981 $6.210,842 36,090,653 $120,189
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Berlishire Loeal School District
Schedhile of Revennes, Expenditures and Changes
In Funed Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual

General Fund (continned)

Forthe Fiscal Yewr Ended June 30, 2011

Supporl Services:
Pupii:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benelits
Purchased Scrvices
Materials and Supplies

Total Pupil

Instructional Stall:
Salarics and Wages
Fringe Benclits
Purchased Scrvices
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay - New

Total Instructional Staff

Board of Education:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplics
Other

Total Board of Education

Administeation:
Salaries und Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Scrvices
Materials and Supplics
Capital Gullay - Replacement
Other

Tatal Administralion

[Fiscal:
Sularies and Wages
Fringe Benelits
Purchascd Services
patevials anc Supplies
Capital Gutlay - Replacement
Other

Tatal Fiscal

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Posgilive

Original I'inal Actual {Negalive)
5357521 352,769 $346,393 $6,376
356,701 130,508 125,280 5,228
104,195 85,922 85.632 290
3,100 2,179 2,152 27
851,517 571,378 559,457 11,921
255,387 269,774 267,218 2,556
33,683 76,988 75,091 1,897
37,793 51,479 50,479 1,000
27,050 24,182 24,167 15

. 10,000 2488 2,488 0
363,213 424,911 419,443 5,408
4,800 5,940 5,790 150

21 1,144 1,076 68

29,585 22,093 21,683 410
1,240 965 462 503
39,000 24,231 24,231 0
94,806 54,373 53,242 1,131
364,274 573,152 572,362 790
212,197 232,927 222,988 9,939
23,986 21,727 18,552 3175
4,300 3,980 3,952 28
2,500 619 619 0
291,000 287,348 287,348 (
$1,098,257 $1,119,753 $1.105821  _ $13.932
139,898 142,938 142,584 354
41,380 75,066 69,073 6,593
45,069 29,302 28,398 204
4,926 4,380 3,795 583
1,500 97 97 0
153750 142898 142898 0
$386,523 $395,281 $386,845 $8,436
{eemtinued)
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General Fund (continned)
For the Fiscal Year Ended hine 30, 201/

e ——————— ——— — e m—— = — ]

Variance wilh

Budpeted Amounts Final Budgel
Positive
QOriginal Final _Actual (Negalive)
Business;
Other $24,500 $32,250 $30,970 $1,280
Operalion und Mainterance of Plant:
Salaries and Wages 139,942 322,981 322,314 667
Fringe Benefils 63,652 127,032 124,895 2,137
Purchased Services 350,666 336,329 122.894 13,435
Malerials and Supplics 56,330 48,203 43913 4,290
Capital Qutlay - Replaceiment 4025 25 U 25
Total Operation and Maintenance of IMlawt B14,8(3 834,570 814,016 20,554
Pupil Transportation:
Salarics und Wages 365,335 405,970 404,210 1,760
Fringe Benefits 82,128 187,855 185,596 2,259
Purchased Services 118,025 101,205 97318 3,947
Materials and Supplics 96,940 115,466 102,624 12,842
Capital Qutlay - Replacement 77,200 72,344 72,344 {0
Total Pupil Transporiation 769,628 BE2,900 862,092 20,808
Tolad Suppert Services 4,403,959 4,315416 4,231,886 83,530
Extracurricular Aclivilics:
Acndemic and Subject Oricnted Aclivities:
Salaries and Wages 31.000 24,994 24,354 641}
Fringe Benefils 8,763 7,977 7,666 3N
ivaterials and Supplies 016350 15,777 573
Tolal Academic and Subject Oriented Aclivitics 39,763 44,321 47,797 1,524
Sports Orienled Aclivities:
Salaries and Wages 243,200 206,566 205,307 1,259
Fringe Benelits 0 26,917 26,492 425
Purchased Services 200 130 130 0
Tolal Sports Oricnted Aclivilies $243,400 $233613 $231,929 $1,684
{(continued)
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Schedile af Revenves, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Bafance - Budget (Non-GAAR) and Actied

General IFund (continned)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Scheol und Public Service Co-Curticular Activitics:

Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benelis

Total School and Public Service
Co-Curricular Activilics

Tatal Extracurriculan Aclivitics

Capilal Outlay:
Purchased Scrvices

Total Capital Quilay
Toiual Expenditires

Exeess of Revenues Over (Under)
Lxpendinwes

Other Financing Sources (Uscs)
Transfers ln

Advances Qui

Translers Qut

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Met Change in Find Balance

Fund Bealance Beginning of Year

Prior ¥Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fnd Balance Fned of Year

Budgeled Amounts

=

Variance with
Final Budgel

Positive

Original Final Actual (Nepative)
54,200 $7,509 $7,507 £2

0 1,030 o2 8

¢, 200) 8,539 8,529 1Q
287,363 291,473 288255 3,218
30,000 8,300 8,300 0
30,000 8,300 8,300 0
10,873,303 10,826,031 10,619,004 206,937
{436,951) 18,037 219,503 (201,4606)
0 183,726 0 (183,720)

0 (26,000) (20,000} 6,000
(314,244) (466,820) (250,000} 210,826
(314,244)  (309,100) (270,000) 39,100
(751,195) (291,063) (50,497) 240,566
2,769,512 2,769,512 2,709,512 0
28,062 28,0062 8062 0
$2,046,379 $2,506,511 $2,747,077 __ﬁ;_:’dg,_f_'()_()_
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Schedile of Revennes, Fxpenditures and Changes
Iir Fund Bulance - Budge! (Non-GAAP) and Actial

Permanent Improvemeni Fund

For the Fiscal Yewr Ended June 30, 201!

Revenues
Property Taxes
Intergovernmentat
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Current:
[nstruction:
Regular;
Capital Outlay ~ New
Supporl Services:
Fiscal:

Other

Operation and Maintenance of Plant;
Purchased Services

Total Support Services

Total Expenditres

Net Change in Fund Balance

Ffund Balance Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance End of Year

- 60 -

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive

Final Actual {Negpative)
$217,364 $217,364 $0
74,638 74,638 0
292,002 292,002 0
41,283 39,181 2,102
4,565 4,565 0
260,929 246,725 14,204
265,494 251,290 14,204
306,777 290,471 16,306
(14,775) 1,531 16,306
160,774 160,774 0
12,526 12,526 0
$158,525 $174,831 516,306




Berkshire Lecal School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
M Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP} and Actual
Food Service Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended Jume 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $85,541 $89,005 $3,554
Charges for Services 137,940 138,006 126
Total Revenues 223,481 227,161 3,680
Expenditures
Current:
Operation of Food Services:
Salaries and Wages 116,581 116,581 0
Fringe Benefits 61,955 59.,54] 2,414
Purchased Services 616 616 0
Materials and Supplies 84,348 82,511 1,837
Total Expenditures 263,500 259,249 4,251
Net Change in Fund Balance (40,019) (32,088) 7,931
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 143,681 143,681 0
Fund Balance End of Year $103,662 $111,593 $7.971
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Berkshire Local School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) ane Actual
Other Grants
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues
Contributions and Donations $1,340 $1,340 $0
Expenditures
Current:

[nstruction:

Regular;
Salaries and Wages 1,139 888 251

Vecational:

Materials and Supplies 201 201 0
Total Expenditures 1,340 1,089 251
Net Change in Fund Balance 0 251 251
Fund Balanee Beginning of Year 0 0 0
fund Balance End of Year 30 $251 $251
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Berkshire Local School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expendifures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual

Athietics and Music Fund
Foi the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance wilh
Final Budgel

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Extracurricular Activilies $50.000 $56,566 $6,566
Confributions and Donations 0 5,264 5,264
Total Revenues 50,000 61,830 11,830
Expenditures
Current:
Exfracuiricular Aclivities:
Sports Oriented Activities:

Salaries and Wages 2,500 2,113 387

Fringe Benefits 511 307 204

Purchased Services 60,489 56,07] 4,416

Materials and Supplies 6,500 5,110 1,390
Toral Expenditives 70,000 63,001 6,397
Excess of Revenmues Under Expenditures (20,000) (1,771) 18,229
Other Financing Sources
Advances In 20,000 20,000 0
Net Change (n Fund Balance 20,000 18,229 18,229
Fune Balance Beginning of Year 1,348 1,348 0
Fund Balance End of Year $21,348 ~ $19,577 $18,229
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Berkshire ocal School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Lelucational Management Information Systems Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues
litergovernmental

Expenditures
Current;
Support Services:
Pupil:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services

Total Support Services

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive

Budget Actual {(Negative)
$5,000 35,000 30
3,624 3,624 0
17 17 0
1,359 1,359 0
5,000 5,000 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
30 30 $0
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Berkshire Local School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditives and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
ONEnet Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues
Intergovernmental

Expenditures
Current:
Support Services:
Administration:
Purchased Services

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$4,550 $4,550 $0
4,550 4,550 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
30 30 $0
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Berkshire Local School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Chunges
In Fund Balance - Budget (Noin-GAAP) and Actual
Title 11l - D
far the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
[ntergovernmental . $564 $564 $0
Expenditures
Current:
Regular Instruction:
Purchased Services 450 450 0
Malerials and Supplies - 114 14 0
Total Regular Instruetion 564 564 0
Net Change in Fund Balance 0 0 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 0 0 0
Fund Balance End of Year $0 $0 $0

- 66 -



Berkshire Loeal School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual

Fiscal Stabilization Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $245,692 $245,692 30
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and Wages 21,568 21,568 0
Fringe Benefits 48,208 48,208 0
Purchased Services 17,584 17,584 0
Materials and Supplies 158,332 158,332 0
Capital Qutlay - New 2,200 2,200 0
Total Expenditires 247,892 247,892 0
Net Change in Fund Balance {2,200) {2,200) 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 0 0 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 2,200 2,200 . 0
Fund Balance End of Year $0 $0 $0
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Berkshire Local School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Dudget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Title VI-B Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Fimal Pusitive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $261,900  §261,900 _$0
Expenditures
Current;
Instruction:
Special:
Purchased Services 194,919 194,919 0
Materials and Supplies 250 250 0
Total Tnstruction 195169 195,169 0
Support Services:
Pupil:
Purchased Services 30,607 30,607 0
Instructional Staff;
Other 2 42 9
Administration:
Salaries and Wages 32,000 32,000 0
Fringe Benefits 4,200 4,200 0
Total Administration 36,200 36200 0
Total Support Services 66,849 66,849 0
Total Expenditures 262,018 262,018 0
Net Change in Fund Balance {(118) (118) 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 76 76 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 42 42 0
Fund Balance End of Year 30 $0 $0

Variance with
Final Budget
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Berkshire Local School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Title I Fund
For the Fiscal Yeer Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernimental $220,475 $220,475 30
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction:

Special.

Salaries and Wages 135,030 135,030 0

Fringe Benefits 34,231 34,231 0

Purchased Services 9,228 9,228 0

Materials and Supplies (1,790 11,790 0

Capital Qutlay - New 30,970 30,970 0

Total Tnstruction 221,249 221,249 0
Support Services:
Pupil:

Purchased Scrvices 501 501 0
Total Expenditures 221,750 221,750 0
Net Change in Ifund Balance (1,275) (1,275) 0
Fund Balance Begiming of Year 1,275 1,275 0
Fund Balance End of Year $0 $0 $0
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Berkshirve Local School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Fetueation Jobs Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended fune 30, 2011

Revenues

Intergovernmental

Expenditures
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:

Salavies and Wages
Fringe Benefits

Total Expenditures

Variance with

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Deficit Begivning of Year

Iund Balance End of Yeor

Final Budget
Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$161,648 $161,648 $0
147,580 147,580 0
14,068 7,026 7,042
161,648 154,606 7,042
0 7,042 7,042
0 0 0
$0 $7,042 $7,042
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Berkshire Local School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Title [I-D Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Finsl Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
[ntergovernmental $616 3616 50
Expenditures
Current;
Support Services:
Instructional Staff:

Purchased Services 616 616 0
Net Change in Fund Balance 0 0 0
Fund Balance Begiming of Year 0 0 0
Fund Balance End of Year 30 $0 $0
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Berkshire Loecal School District
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Drug Free Schools Grant Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $1,023 $1,123 50
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:

Purchased Serviees 1,090 1,090 0

Materials and Supplies 946 946 0
Total Expenditures 2,036 2,036 0
Net Change in Fund Balance (913) 13 0
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 0 0 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 913 913 0
Fund Balance End of Year $0 $0 $0
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Berkshire Local School District

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual

Class Size Reduction Grant Fune
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues
Intergovernmental

Ixpenditures
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services

Total Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$48,357 $48,357 $0
35,070 35,070 0
4,287 4,287 0
9,000 9,000 0
48,357 48,357 0
0 0 0
0 0 0

$0 $0 50

-7



Berlshire Local School District
Schedute of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
In Fund Lquity - Budget (Non-GAAP) and Actual
Self Inswrance Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Charges for Services $123,000 $131,447 $8,447
Expenses
Purchascd Services 2,005 2,005 0
Claims 402,995 402,484 - Sl
Total Expenses 405,000 404,489 511
Excess of Revenues Under
Expenses Before Transfers (282,000) (273,042) 8,958
Transfers In 250,000 250,000 0
Net Change In Fund Equity (32,000) (23,042) £,958
Fund Equity Beginning of Year 48,609 48,609 0
Fund Equity End of Year $16,609 $25,567 $8,958
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Statistical Section

This part of the Berkshire Local School District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures
and required supplementary information says about the School District’s overall financial health.

Contents Pages(s)

FIRACIHl Trends. i e 8§2-811
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the School

District’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

REVEIIE CHPUCTIP. o civnirieireiscernreiis et st sat e e b e b sas s s s b et e v ae st e s aedea et vt s e e e naenaen §12-821
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the School District’s most

significant local revenue, the property tax.

DEBE CAPACTIY oottt snsna e s s st et s s s e r s et e e ar s e s reraemsesses e ranss 8§22 - 827
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the School
District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the School District’s ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Econoniic and Demograpltic INfOrmation ..o s 8§28 - 8§30
These schedules offer economic and demographic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the School District’s financial activities take place.

OPCFAITHG JHIOFIIEON o.vroeverenerreeseiresraiansssessessestisesns st saessesesseressssnsstsnsensssensersaresasopsssessnssssnesans 8§31 -840
These schedules contain service and infrastruclure data to help the reader understand how
the information in the School District’s financial report relates to the services the School
District provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is devived from the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Reports for the relevant year. The School District iinplemented GASB Statement No. 34 in
fiscal year 2002; schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that
year.

-S} -



Berkshire Loeal Schogl District

Net Assels by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(acerual basis of accounting)

2011

2010

2000

2008

2007

Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt £3,404,650

Resfricted for:
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Set Asides
Other Purposes

Unrestricted (Deficit)

203,064
0
39,468
31,163

1,283,319

$3,518,243

193,702
0
39,468
102,983

1,812,478

$2,742,560

357,068
0
39,468
51,84]

2,409,771

51,818,772

053,421
0
39,408
74,824

2,235,701

$1,940,269

922,955
0
39,468
151,441

1,592,209

Total Net Asscts $4,961,664

£5,606,874

35,600,708

$5,122,186

$4,646,342

$4,000,000 —

$3,500,000 S

$3,000,000 -|— —

- $2,500,000 -

$1,500,000

$1,000,000

$2,000,000 +————
$500,000 - -

$0 " T 1

($500,000) 505 2003

2004

2005 2006

2007

2008 2009

2010 2011

($1,000,000) -———

[JSeries] O Series2 O Series3

-~ 852 -




2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
$1,789,300 $2,003,813 $2,154,459 $2,296,818 $1,843,250
640,564 471,040 302,853 310,541 156,522
0 0 0 52,024 52,204
39,468 39,468 39,468 39,468 39,468
168,066 110,672 156,379 87,604 107,382
228,005 (525,586) (342,388) (163,721) 609,162
_ $2,865,403 $2,099,407 $2,310,771 $2,622,734 $2,807,988
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Berkshire Lecal School District

Changes in Net Assets of Governmenial Activilies
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(aeernal basis of accounting)

Expenscs

Regular Instruction

Special [nstruction
Vocational Instruction
Student Intervention

Pupil Support

Instructional Staff Support
Board of Education
Administration

Fiscal

Business

Operation and Main(enance of Plant
Pupil Transporiation
Operation of Food Services
Extracurricular Activilies
Tinterest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenses

Program Revenues
Charges for Scryices
Regular Instruction
Special Instruetion
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Operation of Food Services
Extracurricular Activitics
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contribulions

Total Program Revenyes

Net Expense

General Reveries

Property Taxes Levied for:
General Purpases
Capital Qutlay

Income Taxes Levied for:
General Purposes

Grants and Entitiements not
Restricled to Specifie Programs

Unrestricted Cantributions

Investment Eamings

Gain on Sale of Capilal Assels

Miscellaneons

Total General Revenues

Change tn Net Assets

2011 000 2009 2008 2007

35,126,717 $4,830,346 $5,002,708 $4,800,546 $4,495,206
1,807,617 1,529,679 1,271,151 1,263,407 1,326,200
75,058 76,125 78,115 58,924 60,671
191,649 339,048 12,776 0 0
698,939 600,884 602,816 619,086 614,007
475,608 455,767 442,628 485,694 423,189
50,980 41,679 87,902 54,834 36,959
1,227,358 1,113,593 1,142,152 1,002,491 1,102,186
438,902 382,159 406,222 334,840 348,188
30,680 28,687 38,727 32,706 28,018
1,194,648 878,611 938412 1,048,609 1,136,704
1,143,081 791,630 762,715 982,780 693,519
320,036 264,105 302,888 311,629 270,350
365,520 382,735 405,456 446,431 391,545

0 0 0 0 0
13,146,793 11,715,048 11,554,728 11,441,977 10,926,742
36,308 220,598 185,794 197,407 467,384
361,691 0 28,205 0 0

0 0 0 5314 0

138,066 153,133 174,575 184,448 190,268
211,908 185,985 201,972 246,508 151,692
1,060,395 959,797 522,346 042,954 (608,524
0 0 10,013 30,062 0
1,808,368 1,519,513 1.122.965 1,307,093 1,417,868
(11,338,425) {10,195,535) (10,431,763)  (10,134,884) (9,508,874)
4,165,046 3,841,211 . 4,338,549 4,304,017 4,766,622
219,675 198,446 226,907 226,907 249,327
1,626,657 1,536,729 1,656,813 1,710,748 1,501,823
4,571,888 4,650,889 4,620,371 4,234,744 4,221,620
0 0 0 0 0

0,820 13,083 52,667 124,954 176,711

0 0 0 0 365,160

40,129 19,758 14,978 9,358 8,550
10,633,215 10,260,124 10,910,285 10,610,728 11,289,813
($705,210) $64,589 $478,522 $475344 $1,780,939
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

$4,693,751 $5,188,198  $4,988,073 $4,905,643 $5,062,243
1,564,547 1,390,995 1,153,426 967,922 954,287
55,414 55,653 53,083 47,206 53,659
0 0 0 0 0
611,399 615,690 605,670 599,157 648,079
407,207 504,650 474,125 542,635 410,336
61,313 46,666 51,839 47,565 49,191
829,843 873,703 879,046 1,003,572 951,540
322,274 320,702 334,441 309,202 286,878
29,025 36,421 27,850 16,910 33,972
1,052,876 1,044,789 1,118,464 1,088,676 1,070,121
763,710 809,410 816,997 827,529 786,010
331,153 385,017 388,659 424,048 401,456
363,747 373,143 425,556 413,973 350,015
884 3,006 5,078 340 2,594
11,088,043 11,648,043 11,324,107 11,194,378 11,061,381
98,213 87,553 79,894 75,428 45,157
0 0 0 0 0

10,677 7,783 6,968 11,484 22,843
220,821 250,221 262,367 261,458 255,269
290,301 151,534 135,663 133,834 137,212
647,025 703,894 684,384 438,818 408,776
5,333 1,130 13,034 320,315 27,343
1,272,370 1,212,115 1,182,310 1,241,337 896,600

(9,815,673) (10,435,928} (10,141,797) (9,953,041) {10,164,78 1)

4,777,030 4,859,170 4,536,033 4,493,546 3,912,786
252,820 286,289 240,597 260,450 234,293
1,320,783 1,182,066 1,092,823 1,046,293 1,085,872
4,015,962 3.857,075 3,851,111 3,797,347 3,693,492
10,649 0 0 0 0
91,189 34,686 24,063 88,847 136,719
103,118 0 0 0 0
1,118 5,278 85,207 81,484 110,889
10,581,669 10,224,564 9,820,834 9,767,967 9,174,051
$765,996 ($211,364)  ($311,963) _  ($I85,074) ($990,730)
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Berkshire Local School District
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Two Fiscal Years
{(modified acerual basis of accounting)

C—— e e -

2011 2010
General Fund
Nonspendable $2,029 $1,824
Restricted 41,045 41,045
Assigned 888,474 13,884
Unassigned 1,137,575 2,412,958
Total General Fund 2,069,123 2,469,711
All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable 8,211 5,288
Restricted 258,673 313,009
Assigned 0 0
Unassigned (Deficit) (425) 0
Total Al Other Govermnental Funds 266,459 318,297
Total Governmental Funds 32,335,582 $2,788,008

Note: The School District implemented GASB 54 in 2011,

General Fund Blance

$2,500,000 - --

$2,400,000 - — 4
$2,300,000 —
§2,200,000 -+ -

$2,100,000 - <3

$2,000,000 -- — —

$1,800,000 -~ — — =

$1,800,000 T
201 2010
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Berlishire Loeal School Distriet
Fiumel Balances, Govermnental Frnds
Last Nine Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basiy of accounting)

2009 2008 2007 2006
General Fund
Rescrved $975,989 5695341 $£1,017,180 $975,425
Unreserved 2,074,377 2,300,013 1,486,945 (73,635)
Toral General Jund 3,050,360 2,995,354 2,504,125 901,790

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved 148,174 151,933 121,420 235,130
Unreserved, Undesignated,
Reported in

Special Revenue funds (Deficit) 71,375 51,585 57,547 156,030
Debr Service funds 0 0 0 0
Capital Projects tunds 206,166 804,033 Bl15,411 408,063
Total All Other Gavernrnental Funds 425,715 1,008,451 994 384 799,223
Tolal Governmental Finds £3,476,081 4,003,805 $3,498,509 1,701,013

Note: The School District implemented GASB 54 in 201 1.

Fund Balance of the General Fund

$2,500,000
$2,000,000 |-
$1,500,000 |

$1,000,000
$500,000 ;_:[: _H H D:a _‘7'_::_
so |- =L 2 I

($500,000)
($1,000,000)

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
O Reserved [EA Unreserved
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2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
$1,081,687 $720,833 $606,338 $713,107 $699,924
(876,971) (237,113) 265,095 793,705 1,773,148
204,716 483,720 871,433 1,506,812 2,473,072
201,771 110,697 218,634 76,104 301,072
73,826 113,164 40,004 (10,411) 82,033
0 0 52,024 52,024 52,024
285,158 228,061 104,951 79,807 18,048
560,755 451,922 415,613 197,614 454,077
$765,471 $935,642 $1,287,046 $1,704,426 $2,927,149
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Berlsshire Eocat School Istrlct
Chengex in Frund Balances, Gaverrmental Funds
Last Ten Filscal Years
(modified acerual basls of accounting)

2 2011 g 2010 2009 2008 _ 2007
Revenies
Income Taxes $1,626,657 $1,544 686 $1,080,604 $1,605,512 $1,501,823
Property Taxes 4,349,320 4,058.441 4,560,815 4,425,741 5,155,342
Intergovemmetiial 5,610,908 5,581,373 5,125,435 4,874,439 4,759,998
Interest 9,820 13,083 52,667 124,951 176,711
Tuilion and Fees 397,999 220,598 214,059 197,000 221,754
Extracurricular Activilics 209,908 183,351 197,688 246,908 309,158
Contributions and Denafions 21,375 29,313 27,295 33,321 70,148
Charges for Services 138,066 153,133 174,681 184,756 270,045
Rentals 2,000 2,634 4,174 5,314 7,787
Miscellareous - 40,129 B 19,758 14978 9,358 8,350
Tatal Revenues 12406182 11807370 12052400 11707402 12481914
Expendltires
Current:
Instruclion:
Regular 4,920,559 1,598,101 4,910,346 4,551,570 4,359,350
Special 1,799,284 1,560,754 1,248,205 1,270,129 1,329,869
Yoculionnl 71,458 70,925 6,117 63351 39,507
Studlent tervention 191,649 339,048 12,776 0 V]
Support Services:
Pupil 442,890 587,278 585,437 596,768 610,225
Instructional S1alm™ 453,246 444,152 413,959 466,354 433,541
Board of Edueation 50,980 41,679 87,962 54,834 36,959
Administration 1,195,284 1,084,482 1,103,077 1,027,474 1,067,488
[iscal 432,910 376,220 403,219 332,841 371,725
Businuss 30,680 28,687 38,727 32,706 24,018
Operation and Muintenance of Plant 1,148,327 963,066 1,103,255 958,097 967,069
Pupil Transportalion 1,018,78] 854,523 749,980 753,843 768,513
Cenlral 0 ¢ 0 0 0
Operation of Non-structional Services 0 0 0 0 0
Qperatlon of Fopd Services 279,864 244,249 270,217 294 331 262,839
Extracuricular Activities 364,396 381,611 403,839 445,806 390,948
Capital Qutlny 8,300 622,245 921,888 223,962 369,621
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 0 0 0 0 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges ) 0 o B 0. 0
Total Expenditues 12,608,608 12,197,020 12,320,124 (1072106 11,055,672
Exeess of Revennes Over
{Under) Expenditures ___ (202426) _ (349,650) {267,724) 635,206 1,426,242
Olher Financlng Svurees (Uses)
Sale of Capital Assels 0 0 0 0 371,254
Ineeption of Capital Lease 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers In 0 116,600 165,444 0 30,308
Transters O (250,000) (416,600 (425444) {130,000) {30,808)
Total Oiher Financing Sources (Uses) _ {250,000y (300,000 (2600007 (130000 371,254
Mer Change th und Balances ($452,426) ($089,650) ($327,724) ~ £505,206 il ,3‘)7.&
Debt Service as a Perecnlags of
Noneapital Expenditures 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
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2006 2005 20014 2003 2002

$1,329,783 $1,182,066 $1,092,823  $1,044,293 51,085,872
5,026,267 5,103,176 4,775,107 4,766,751 4,139,397
4,644,456 4,553,248 4,501,737 4,245,726 4,043,960
91,189 24,686 24,063 88,847 136,719
56,244 55,769 46,141 44,700 20,084
290,301 151,534 135,663 133,834 137,212
34,513 18,851 46,792 35214 85,485
262,790 282,005 296,120 289,347 280,342
10,677 7,783 6,968 11,484 22,843
1,118 5278 85,207 81,484 110,389
11,747,338 1,394,396 11,010,621 10,747,680 10,062, 503
4,510,378 4,970,513 4,794,030 5,085,157 4,944,160
1,535933 1,423,454 £,155,584 964,032 962,436
54,762 54,833 51,639 46,735 53,643

0 0 0 0 0
606,315 613,912 579,799 594,738 633,850
400,096 499,865 470,724 539,961 411,761
46,539 45,977 5,018 47,562 49,197
805,231 852,759 876,384 992,446 914,134
313,693 315,633 325,462 206,503 280,236
29,925 36,421 27,850 16910 13,972
973,686 1,008,026 1,070,456 1,042,087 1,003,395
690,623 770,480 761,529 789,847 836,990
0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 81,255 33,050
320,715 392,307 377,141 336,601 357,014
154,006 357,388 418,126 391,254 345,444
334,672 146,929 325,713 152,444 393,131
58,736 72,047 70,879 6,339 10,000
094 3,123 5,191 0 3,113
_ 11,046,804 11,564,567 11362025 11383961 11285526
700,534 {170,171 {351,404) {636281) {1,222,723)
235,008 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 218,901 0

0 0 52,024 25,000 25,000

0 0 {52,004) {25,000) £25,000)
235,008 0 — 216,901 0
$935,542 ($170,171) ($351,404)  (§417380)  (§1222,723)
C.65% 067% 0.69% 0.06% 0.30%
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Berkshire Local School District
Assessed and Estimated Actwal Value of Taxable Froperiy
Last Ten Years

Real Esiate Tangible

Assessed Value

Estimated
Colleclion Residential/ Commercial/ Actual Assessed

Year Agricultural Industrial Total Value Value

2011 $185,075,680 $24,497,110 $213,572,790 $610,207,971 $0
2010 189,031,680 24,417,430 213,449,110 609,854,600 0
2009 187,824,100 23,853,220 211,677,320 604,792,343 0
2008 185,639,640 23,379,720 209,019,360 597,198,171 4,807,680
2007 183,710,490 22,453,650 206,164,140 589,040,400 9,765,500
2006 181,335,230 22,365,410 203,700,640 582,001,829 14,712,180
2005 158,735,280 19,832,180 178,567,460 510,192,743 19,212,290
2004 155,560,120 19,950,180 175,510,300 501,458,000 19,535,060
2003 151,308,040 19,594,050 170,902,090 488,291,686 20,538,500
2002 134,440,000 17,503,830 151,943,830 434,125,229 15,111,250

Real property is reappraised every six years with a State mandated update of the current market
value In the thivd year following each reappraisal.

The assessed valuc of real property (including public utility real property) is 35 percent of estimated [rue value. The assesscd
value of public ulility personal properly ranges from 25 percent of a true value for railroad property to 88 percent for electric
eleciric transmission and distribution property. General business tangible personal property was ossessed in previous years at
25 percent for machinery and equipment and 23 percent for inventorics. General business tangible personal property tax was
phased out beginning in 2006. Both types of general business tangible personal property were assessed at 12.5 for 2007,

6.25 percent for 2008 and zero for 2009, Beginning in 2007, House Bill 66 switched telephone comparies from being

publie utilities to general business taxpayers and began a four year phasc out of tangible personal property tax on local and
inter-exchange teleplione companies. No tangible personal property taxes were levied or collected in 2009 from gencral
business taxpayers {except letephone companies whose last year to pay tangible personal property tax 1s 2010)

The tangible personal property values associated with each year are the values that, when mutiplied by the applicable rates,
generated the property tax revenue billed that year. For the real property, the amounts generated by mulitplying the assessed
valucs by the applicable rates would be reduced by the 10 percent, 2 1/2 percent and homeslead exemptions before being bitled.

Beginning in 2006 collection year, the [0 percent rollback for commereial/industrial property has been eliminated.

Source: Office of the County Auditor, Geauga County, Chio
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Personal o Public Utility Personal - . Total

Estimated Estimated Eslimated Weighted
Actual Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Average
Value Value Value Value pa AR Tax Rale

$0 $5,390,330 56,125,375 $218,963,120 $616,333,346  §21.99742

0 5,284,160 6,004,727 218,733,270 615,859,327 21.92695

0 4,965,770 5,642,920 216,643,090 610,435,263 21.67722
76,922,880 5,279,450 5,999,375 219,106,490 680,120,426 2264113
78,124,000 6,276,010 7,131,830 222,205,650 674,296,230 23.44983
78,464,960 6,205,680 7,051,909 224,618,500 667,518,698 24.07686
76,849,160 6,533,790 7,424,761 204,313,540 594,466,664 25.41435
78,140,240 6,472,680 7,355,318 201,518,040 586,953,558 25.48296
82,154,000 5,946,900 6,757,841 197,387,490 577,203,527 25.64408
60,445,000 6,430,150 7,306,989 173,485,230 501,877,218 2550385
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Berlishire Local School District

Froperty Tax Rates - Divect and Overlupping Goverrnments

(per $1,000 of assessed value)
Last Ten Years

Unvaoted Millage
Operaling

Voted Millage - hy levy
1976 Operaling - conlinuing
Effcctive Millage Rales
Residentigl/Agrieulturnl
Commercial/Induslrial
Tangitle/Public Utitity Persenal

1977 Opceraling - continuing
Effective Millape Rates
Residential/Agricultural
Commercial/Industrial
Tangible/Tublic Utility Personal

1983 Qperating - continuing
Effective Millnge Rates
Residential/Agricultural
Commercial/dustrial
Tangible/Public Utility Personal

1985 Operating - conlinting
Effcctive Millage Rates
Residential/Agricultural
Commercial/Industrial
Tangible/Public Utility Personal

1988 Opcrating - continuing
Effective Millage Rates
Residential/Agricultural
Commercial/lndusirial
Tangible/Public Utility Personal

2005 Permancent Improvements - 5 years (1)
Effective Millage Rales
Residential/Agricultural
Conumercial/Industrial
Tangible/Public Utility Personal

Total Effectlve Voled Millage by type of property
Residential/Agricultural

Commercial/Industrial

Tangible/Public Ulility Personal

Total Effective Millage by type of property
Restdentinl/Agricultural
Commercial/Industrial

Tangible/Public Utility Personal

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
$4.5000 $4.5000 $4.5000 $4.5000 $4.5000
7.7734 7.7579 7.7572 7.7505 7.7472
7.5105 7.4948 7.5018 7.4899 7.4844
26.1000 26.1000 26,1000 26.1000 26.1000
1.4891 4862 14861 |.4848 1.484]
1.4388 1.4358 1.4371 1.4349 1.4338
5.0000 5.0000 5.0000 5.0000 5.0000
20126 2.0086 2.0095 2.0107 20118
2.5834 2.5780 2.5804 2.5763 2.5744
4.7000 4.7000 4.7000 4.7000 4.7000
1.9269 1.9231 1.9229 1.9251 1.9262
24734 2.4683 24706 2.4667 2.4648
4.5000 4,5000 4.5000 4,5000 4.5000
2.3304 2.3256 2.3254 2.3289 2.3300
2.8165 2.8106 28132 2.8088 2.8067
5.0000 5.0000 5.0000 5.0000 5.0000
1.0208 1.0188 1.0187 1.0225 1.0244
1.4244 1.4214 1.4228 1.4205 14195
2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000
[6.5531 16.5202 [6.5187 16.5225 16.5243
18.2469 18.2088 18.2260 18,1971 18.1830
47.8000 47.8000 47.8000 47.8000 47.8000
21,0531 21.0202 21.0187 21.0225 21.0243
22.7469 227088 22,7260 22,6971 22,6830
52.3000 52.3000 52.3000 52.3000 52.3000
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

34,5000 $4.5000 34.5000 $4.5000 $4.5000
7.7462 7.5200 7.5170 7.5095 7.2747
7.3781 8.2787 8.1365 8.1248 84077

26.1000 26.1000 26.1000 26.1000 26.1000
1.4840 L4406 1.4400 1.4386 1.3936
1.4134 1.5860 1.5587 1.5569 1.6107
5.0000 5.0000 5.0000 5.0000 5.0000
2.012) 2.0893 2.0903 2,0920 21730
2.5378 2.8476 2.7987 2.7954 2.8920
47000 4.7000 4,7000 4.7000 4.7000
1.9265 2.0004 2.0014 2.0038 2.0805
24298 2.7204 2.6796 2.6764 2,7689
4,5000 4.5000 4,5000 4,.5000 4,5000
23312 24497 245]2 24552 2,5782
2.7668 3.1046 3.0513 3.0476 3.1530
5.0000 5.0000 5.0000 5.0000 5.0000
1.0249 1.1537 1.1554 1.1594 1.2854
1.3993 1.5701 1.5432 1.5413 1.5946
2.5000 2.5000 2,5000 2.5000 2.5000
14.5249 16.6537 16.6553 16.6594 16.7854
17.9252 20.1134 19.7680 19.7444 20.4269

47.8000 47.8000 47.8000 47.8000 47.8000

21.0249 21,1537 21,1553 21.15% 21.2854

224252 24,614 24.2680 24.2444 24.9269

52.3000 52.3000 52,3000 52.3000 52.3000

{continued)
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Berkshire Local School District
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Goveramenls (continned)
{per $1,000 of assessed value)
Last Ten Years

2011 o 2009 2008 2007
Overlapping Rates by Taxing Distriet
Aunburn Joint Vocational School District Voted Millage
Effcetive Millage Ratca
Residential/Agricultural 31,5000 §1.5000 §1.5000 $1.5000 $1.5000
Comntercinl/Industrial 1.5000 1.5000 }.5000 1.5000 1.5000
Tangible/Public Utility Persona) 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000
Burton Public Library Voted Millage
Effeclive Millage Rates
Residential/Agricultural 1.1980 1.1956 1.1955 0.7926 0.7941
Commercial/Industrial 1.2000 1,1989 1.2000 0.8905 0.8808
Tangible/Public Utility Personal 1.2000 1.2000 1.2000 1.0000 1.0000
Village of Burten Unveled Millage
Residential/Agricultural 8.1231 8.1174 81172 8.1326 8.1302
Commercial/Industrial 93172 9.3172 9.3172 9.3407 9.3440
Tangiblc/Public Utility Personal 9.7500 9.7500 9.7500 97500 9.7500
Tewnship of Burton Voted Millage
Effective Millage Rales
Residential/Apgricultural 59380 59316 5.9289 5.9351 5.9387
Commercial Industrial 6.3130 63107 6.3099 6.3099 6.3070
Tangible/Public Ltility Personal 7.2500 7.2500 7.2500 7.2500 7.2500
Township of Clariden Voted Millage
Effective Millage Rates
Residentinl/Agricultural 65222 6.5171 6.5153 6.5243 6.5348
Commercial/Industrial 6.2885 6.2884 6.2874 6.2874 6.2873
Tangible/Public Utility Personal 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 9.4000 2.4000
Township of Troy Veled Millage
Residential/Agricultural 93918 9.3722 93777 9.4210 9.4284
Commezcial/Industrial §.4271 83976 8.4153 8.3713 B.3613
Tangible/Public Ulility Personal 12.5000 12,5000 12,5000 12.5000 12.5000
Genuga County Voled Millage
Effective Millage Rates
Resgidential/Agricultural 11.6097 11,2064 10.9011 10.8584 10.8751
Connnercial/industrial 12,4348 12.0948 11.5893 11.4913 11.5035
Tangible/Public Utility Personal 15.1000 [5.1000 15.1000 15.1000 15.1000

(1) This is rencwed cvery five years and was last renewed in 2008,

The rntes presented for a particutar calendar year ore the rates that, when applied o the assessed values
presented in the Assessed Value Teble, generated 1he property lax revenue billed in that year.

Rates iay only be raised by obiaining the approval of a majorily of the voters at a publie clection,

Real property tnx rates fer voted levies arc reduced se that inflalionary increases in value do not
generate additional revenue,

Qverlapping rates are those of loeal and county governmenls that apply 10 preperly awners witli the School Distriet.

Source: Ohio Depariment of Taxation
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
%1.5000 $1.5000 $1.5000 $1.5000 31.5000
1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000
1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 1.5000 15000
0.7945 0.8943 0.8956 0.8987 0.9964
0.8772 0.9843 0.5674 0.9662 0.9996
1.0000 1.0000 1,0000 10000 1.0000
8.1252 8.7626 8.7626 8.7634 7.8498
91220 9.5308 9.2209 9.1944 82366
9.7500 9.7500 9.7500 9.7500 8.7500
5.9448 5.2931 53819 5.3861 4.9773
6.3072 5.6419 5.7536 5.7536 5.2041
7.2500 6¢.3000 7.1000 7.1000 7.1000
6.5377 63170 6.3238 6.3436 6.6782
6.2914 6.7227 6.7227 6.7262 6.8776
9.4000 9.4000 ©.4000 ©.4000 9.4000
94212 10.1821 10.1830 10.2093 11.1219
82919 9.3190 9.3190 9.3190 9.4826
12,5000 12.5000 12.5000 12.5000 12.5000
10.8912 11.8767 10.8587 10.3876 10.9916
11.4143 12.6037 11.7554 11.2985 11.5829
15.1000 15.1000 15,1000 14.6000 14.4000
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Berkshire Local School District
Property Tax Levies and Collections (1)
Last Ten Years

Percent of
Curtent Tax Percent of
Curent Collections to Delinquent Total Tax
Collection Tax Current Tax Current Tax Total Tax Collections to
Year (2) Levy Collections Tax Levy Collections (3)  Collections Current 1'ax Levy
2010 $£4,805,662 54,712,631 98.06% $208,062 $4,920,693 102.39%
2009 4,830,649 4,729,877 97.91 205,453 4,935,330 102,17
2008 5,041,199 4,888,884 90,98 229,328 5,118,212 101.533
2007 5,329,712 5,108,242 05.84 161,485 5,269,727 098.87
2006 5,768,910 5,328,272 92.36 190,742 5,519,014 95.67
2005 5,309,213 5,118,387 96.41 190,147 5,308,534 99.99
2004 5,480,405 5,047,035 92.09 121,135 5,168,170 94.30
2003 5,473,088 4,996,649 91.29 140,381 5,137,030 91.86
2002 5,123,159 4,774,892 93.20 117,633 4,892,525 95.50
2001 4,696,679 4,370,504 93.06 95,3157 4,465,861 95,09

Source: Office of the County Auditor, Geauga County, Ohio

(1) Includes Homestead/Rollback taxes assessed loeally, but distribuled through the State and
reported as Intergovermnental revenue.

(2) The 2011 information cannot be presented because all collections have not been made
by June 30, 201 1.

(3) The County does not maintain delinquency information by tax year.
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Berkshire Local School District
Principal Taxpayers
Real Estate Tax
2011 and 2002

Name of Taxpayer

Great Lakes Cheese Company, [nc.
Saint Gobain Ceramics & Plastics, Inc.
Thistle Lane Real Properties LLC
Excel Polymers LLC

Jolm & James Masterniclk Trustees
Troy Qaks Hoines

Luxenburg Properlies BE

Bridge Creek Properties LLC

Tirpak Enterprises LLC

Grandview Golf Club

Totals

Total Real Estate Tax Assessed Valuation

Name of Taxpayer

Great Lalkes Cheese

Thistle Lane Real Properties
Berkshire Hills Limited

M. A. Hanna Company
John J. Masternick

Troy Qaks [Homes

Farmore Farms Limited
Safina Inn LLO

Blaine M. Kaufmann
Grandview Golf Club

Totals

Total Real Estate Tax Assessed Valuation

$151,943,830

Source: Office of the County Auditor, Geauga County, Ohio

2011
o Percent of
Assessed Real Property
Value Assessed Value
$4,016,460 1.88 %
2,114,350 0.99
1,642,380 0.77
1,207,580 0.57
1,040,380 0.49
933,390 0.44
917,880 0.43
721,530 0.34
57(,650 0.27
509,180 0.27
$13,733,780 643 %
$213,572,790
2002
" Percentof
Assessed Real Property
Value Assessed Value
$3,867,190 2.55 %
1,473,330 0.97
1,321,310 0.87
1,138,920 0.75
1,061,110 0.70
788,810 0.52
709,120 0.47
648,700 0.43
530,320 0.35
493,510 0.32
$12,032,320 7.92 %




Berkshire Local School District

Principal Taxpayers
Public Utilities Toax
2011 and 2002

Name of Taxpayer

Cleveland Electric [llnmninating Company
American Transmission Systems Tne
East Ohio Gas Company

Ohio Edison

Total

Total Public Utilities Assessed Valuation

Name of Taxpayer

Cleveland Electric llluminating Company
Ohio Bell Telephone Company

East Ohio Gas Company

Ohio Edison

Total

Total Publie Utilities Assessed Valuation

Sowrce: Office of the County Auditor, Geauga County, Ohio
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20t
Percent of
Assessed Public Utility
Value Assessed Value
$4,423,340 82.06 %%
360,950 0.70
139,630 6.30
261,320 4.85
$5,385,240 99.91
$5,390,330
2002 e
Percent of
Assessed Public Utility
Value . Assessed Value
$3,601,830 56.01 %
(,011,800 15.74
225,490 3.51
189,570 2,95
£5,028,690 7620 %
$6,430,150



Berlshire Local School District
Income Tax Revenue Base and Collections (1)
Last Ten Years

Percentage Percentage
of Taxes Taxes of Taxes
Tax Tax Total Tax Taxes from from from Direct from Direct
Year (2) Rate Collected Withholding Withliolding Payments Payments
2011 1.00 % $1,626,657 $910,880 5600 % 8715777 4400 %

2010 1,00 1,536,729 910,880 59.27 625910 40.73
2009 1.00 1,656,813 932,045 56.20 724,690 43.74
2008 1.00 [,710,748 721,954 45.80 027,225 54.20
2007 0.75 1,501,823 687,835 45.80 813,988 54.20
2006 0.75 1,329,783 711,434 53.50 618,349 46.50
2005 0.75 1,182,066 632,405 53.50 549,661 46.50
2004 0.75 1,092,823 611,981 56.00 480,842 44.00
2003 0.75 1,046,293 600,572 57.40 445,721 42.60
2002 0.75 1,085,872 612,432 56.40 473,440 43.60

(1) Income tax is only collected on the income of residents and on estates,

(2) Fiseal year 2002 through 2010 are on an accrual basis.

Source: Ohio Department of Taxation
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Berkshire Local School District
Conputation of Divect and Overlapping
Govermmental Activities Debt
December 31, 2010

General Amount of
Qbligation Percentage Direct and
Bonded Debt Applicable to Overlapping
Qutstanding School District (1) Debt
Direct:
Berkshire Local School District 30 100.00% $0
Overlapping:
Geauga County
Special Assessment Bonds 1,974,714 7.52% 148,498
General Obligation Notes 12,726,809 7.52% 957,056
Total Overlapping 14,701,523 7.52% 1,105,555
Total $14,701,523 $1,105,555

Source: Office of the Auditor, Geauga County, Ohio

(1) Percentages were determined by dividing the assessed valuation of the political subdivision
located within the boundaries of the School District by the total assessed valuation of the

subdivision. The valuations used were for the 2010 collection year,
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Berkshire Local School District
Ratio of General Bonded Debt to Estimated Actual
Value, Ratio of General Debt to Personal Income and Debt per Capifa
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Bonded Debt

Ratio of
Estimated Bonded Debt to Bonded
Fiscal Actual Bonded Estimated Debt per
Year Population (1) Value (2) Debt Actual Value Capita
2011 8,647 b $616,333,346 0 0.00 0.00
2010 8,047 b 615,859,327 0 0.00 0.00
2009 8,647 b 610,435,263 0 0.00 0.00
2008 8,647 b 680,120,426 0 0.00 0.00
2007 8,647 b 674,296,230 0 0.00 0.00
2006 8,647 b 667,518,698 0 0.00 0.00
2005 8,647 b 594,466,664 0 0.00 0.00
2004 8,647 b 586,953,558 0 0.00 0.00
2003 8,647 b 577,203,527 Q 0.00 0.00
2002 8,647 b 501,877,218 0 0.00 0.00
Source: (1) U.S. Bureau of Census, Census of Population

(@) 1990 Federal Census
(b) 2000 Federal Census

(2) Geauga County Auditor

(3) The personal income can be found on S§28
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General Debt

Ratio of
General Debt to General
Capital Total Personal Debt per
Leases Debt Income (3) Capita
0 0 0.00 0.00
0 0 0.00 0.00
G 0 0.00 0.00
0 0 0.00 0.00
0 0 0.00 0.00
0 0 0.00 0.00
68,736 68,736 0.24 7.95
141,683 141,683 0.50 16.39
212,562 212,562 0.75 24.58
0 0 0.00 0.00
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Berlshive Local School District
Comprtation of Legal Debt Maorgin
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Assegsed Valuation (1) £213,572,790) $213,449,110  $211.677,320  $209,019,360 *?O(L}"’iLE}L
Debl Lintit - 9% of Assessed Value (2) $19,221,551 $19,210,420 $£19,050,959 F18,811,742 318,554,773
Amount of Debl Applicable to Debt Limit

General Qbiigation Bonds 0 g 0 ¢ 0

Less Amount Available in Debt Serviee 0 1 0 { 0
Amount of Debt Subject to Limit 0 0 0 { 0
Legal Debt Margin $19,221,551 $19.210,420 $19,050,959 $is. 811,742 318,554,773
[Legal Debt Margin ns a Pereenlage of 1he

Dcbt Limit 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 108.00%
Unvoted Debt Limit - . 10% of Asscssed Yalue (2) $213,573 $213,449 $211,677 $209,019 $206,164
Amount of Debt Applicable 0 0 0 0 0
Unvated Legnl Delyt Mnrgin $213,573 $213,449 $211,677 $209,019  $206.164
Unvoted Legal Debt Margin as a Percenlage of

the Unvoted Debi Limit 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% [130.00%

Souwrce: Geauga County Auditor and School Distriet Financial Records
(13 Beginming in fiseal year 2006, HB530 changed the assessed valuation utilized in the
legal debt margin culeulalion 1o excluded tangible persanal property as well

as railroad and telephone tangible property.

(2) Ohio Bond Law scts a limit of 9% for oversll debt end
1710 of 1% for unvoted debt,
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2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

$203,700,640 $178,567.460 3175,510,300 $170,902,000 $151,943,830

e ]

$18,333,058 $16,071,071 $15,795,927 $15,381,188 $13,674,945

q 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 {52,024) (52,024)
i 0 0 0 0

$18,333,058 $16,071,071 $15,795,927 $15,381,188 $13,674,945

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 160.00%
$203,701 178,567 $175,510 $170,902 3151.944
0 0 ) 0 n
$203,701 $178,567 $175.510 $170,902 $151,044

100.00% L00.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Berkshire Local School District
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Personal Median

Total Personal Income Household
Year Population (2) Income (1) Per Capita (1) Income (1)
2011 1,450 $28,298,200 $19,516 $41,830
2010 1,450 28,298,200 19,516 41,830
2009 1,450 28,298,200 19,516 41,830
2008 1,450 28,298,200 19,516 41,830
2007 1,450 28,298,200 19,516 41,830
2000 [,450 28,298,200 19,516 41,830
2005 1,450 28,298,200 19,516 41,830
2004 1,450 28,298,200 19,516 41,830
2003 1,450 28,298,200 19,516 41,830
2002 1,450 28,298,200 19,516 41,830

Source 2000 & 2010 U.S. Census
Geaupa County

(1} Information presented is for the Village of Burton. I[nformation for the Townships
of Burton, Troy and Claridon was not available.
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Median Geauga Total

Value County Assessed
Median of Residential Unemployment Property
Ape (1) Property (1) Rate Value
37.50 135,100 7.5 % $218,963,120
37.50 135,100 7.5 218,733,270
37.50 135,100 7.5 216,643,090
37.50 135,100 5.8 219,106,490
37.50 135,100 4.9 222,205,650
37.50 135,100 4.4 224,618,500
37.50 135,100 4.7 204,313,540
37.50 135,100 4.7 201,518,040
37.50 135,100 4.9 197,387,490
37.50 135,100 4.1 173,485,230
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Berkshire Local School District
Principal Employers
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2004 (1)

December 31,2010
Employer City Nature of Business or Activity _ Employees
Great Lakes Cheese Troy Cheese Packaging and Distribution 600
Excell Polymers, LLC Burton Manufacturing 177
Burton Health Care Burton Long-term Health Care and Rehabiliation 140
Berkshire School Board of Education Burton Education 132
Preston Superstore Burton Automobile Sales 98
Duramax Troy Manufacturing 81
ARMS Trucking Burton Trueking 75
Ronyak Paving Burion Paving 70
BFG Supply, Incorporated Burton Wholesale Disiributor - Grecnliouse 50
Troy Manufacturing Troy Manufacturing 30
Total 1,453
Total Employment within the School District n/a
December 31, 2004 (1)
Employer Cily Nature of Business or Activity Employees
Great Lakes Cheese Troy Packaging 500
Excell Polymers, LLC Burton Manufacluring 214
Berkshire School Board of Education Burton Education 190
Burton Health Care Burlon Health Care 158
BFG Burton Sales 125
Duramax Troy Manufacturing 90
Preston Superstore Burton Sales 75
Ronyak Paving Burton Paving GO
ARMS Trucking Burton Trucking 65
Troy Manufacturing Troy Manufacturing 32
Total 1,515
n/a

Total Employment within the School District

Source: Village of Burton and the Townships of Burton and Troy, Ohio.

(1) Information prior to 2004 is not available.

n/a - Information not available.
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Derlshire Locnl School District

Butlding Statistles by Function/Program

Lasi Seven Fiscal Years (1)

Burton Elementary School
Construcled in 1959
Total Building Square Foolage
Enrollnent Grades K-6
Student Capacity
Regular Inslruction Clussrooms
Regular Inistruclion Teachers
Special Instruction Classrooms
Special Instruction Tcachers

Troy Elementary School
Conslructed in 1924
Tofal Building Square Footage
Enrollment Grades 1-6
Student Capacity
Regular Instruction Classrooms
Regular Instruction Teaehets
Special Instruction Classrcoms
Special Instruction Teachers

Claridon Elementnry School
Constructed in 1920
Total Boilding Square Footage
Enrollment Grades 1-6
Student Capacity
Regular Instruction Clussrooms
Regular Instruction Teachers
Special Instruction Classrocms
Special Instroction Teachers

Junlor High/idigh Schoel
Constructed in 1936
Total Building Squarc Foolage
Enrollment Grades 7-12
Student Capacily
Regular Instruction Classrooms
Regular Instruction Teachers
Special nstruction Classrooms
Special Instroction Teachers

(1) Information prior to 2005 is not available

Source: Schoel District Records

2011 2010 2009 2008
41,645 41,645 41,645 29,549
507 508 495 363
640 640 640 450
23 23 16 30
23 23 v} 30
4 4 4 3
8 8 8 3
0 0 18,556 18,556
0 0 163 163
0 0 190 190
0 0 6 6
0 0 6 6
0 0 l 1
0 0 1 t
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 ) 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 ) 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
95,485 95,485 95,485 95,485
576 569 629 619
760 760 760 760
32 32 32 32
30 30 30 30
5 5 5 5
5 5 5 5
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2007 2006 2005
29,549 25,549 29,549
408 421 371
450 450 4350
23 2} 23
24 26 26
2 2 2
2 3 3
18,556 18,556 18,556
149 159 99
190 199 190
[ 10 10
11 i) 9
| 1 1
1 t 1
0 0 15,467
0 )] 142
0 il 200
0 0 §
0 0 6
0 0 0
0 0 0
95,485 05,485 95,485
690 702 724
760 760 760
32 32 32
31 32 12
4 4 4
4 4 4



Berhishire Local School Distriet
Per Pupil Cost
Last Ten iscal Years

Studenls
Pupil/ Receiving Iree
Fiseal Cost Pereentage Teaching Teacher ot Reduced Percentage
_ Year  Expenditures Enrollment Per Pupil Change Staff Ratio Luneh of Enrollment
20011 $12,608,608 1,083 $11,642 2.73% 72 15.0 242 22.3%
2010 12,197,020 1,077 11,325 (3.20) 73 14.8 155 0.1
2009 12,320,124 1,124 10,961 11.78 73 154 44 12.8
2008 11,072,106 1,145 9,670 8.32 75 153 [31 11.4
2007 11,055,672 1,247 8,866 2.81 75 16.6 54 4.3
2006 11,046,804 1,282 8,617 (0.46) 79 16.2 49 3.8
2005 11,564,567 1,336 8,656 5.21 86 [5.5 47 3.5
2004 11,362,025 1,381 8,227 (0.48) 87 15.9 68 4.9
2003 11,383,961 1,377 8,267 2.37 88 15.6 52 33
2002 11,285,526 1,395 3,090 0.00 90 15.5 52 3.7

Source: School Distriet Records
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Berkshire Local School District
Attendance and Graduation Rates
Last Ten School Years

Fiscal Berkshire State Beirkshire State
Year Attendance Rate Average Graduation Rate Average
2010 94.30% 94.30% 9520% 83.00%
2009 94.40 94.30 95.20 90.00
2008 94.60 93.00 94.20 90.00
2007 94.10 93.00 94.00 90.00
2006 95.20 94.10 95.30 86.20
2005 95.60 94.30 94.60 85.90
2004 95.90 94.50 95.40 84.30
2003 95,70 94.50 98.30 83.90
2002 95.50 94.30 92.50 82.80
2001 96.00 93.90 95.00 81.20
Source: Ohio Department of Education Local Repoxt Cards
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Berishive Loeal School District
FFutl-Time Eguivalent School Disivict Teochers by Edwoatlon
Last Ten Fiseal Years

Depree 2011 2010 A9 2008 2007 2006 2008 2004 2003 2002
Bachelor's Degree 5 9 8 3 5 7 10 12 21 16
Bachelor+ | § 7 4 3 3 2 0 4 3 3 7
Bachelor + 15¢ 15 5 15 15 19 zl 18 26 19 25
Muster's Deprec 18 17 18 20 22 26 29 20 16 18
Muster + 15 13 12 11 I 13 L1 1} 14 1 g
Master + 30 14 16 18 18 14 14 14 12 D - S |
Totnl 72 73 73 75 73 74 &6 87 88 90

j
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= =
1 X
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20n 2010 2009 2006 2095 2004 2003 2002

M Bnchelor Dachelor + O Master M Master +

\

Source: Schoo) District Records



Berkshire Loent School District

Schirdd Disiviet Employees by Functlon Proygram
Faest Mine Flscal Veors (1)

Function/Trogram 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 i 2005 2004 2003

Repnlar Instruction

Flementary Classroom Tenchers 31.00 31.00 30.00 30.00 35.00 33.00 3400 39.00 39.00

Hegh School Classroom Tenchery 30.00 29.00 30,00 30.00 31.00 3100 33.00 33.00 33,00
Special [nstruction

Elementyy Classroom Teachers 4.00 4,00 4,00 4.00 3.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4,00

Uiled Educntion Teachers 1.00 1.00 1.00 1,00 0.50 0.50 1.00 1.00 1.00

High School Classroom Teachers 5.00 4.00 3.00 5.00 4.00 3.00 4.00 3,00 3.00
Vacational Instruction

High Sehool Clussroom Tenchers 1.00 1.00 1.08 1,00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 [.00
Pupil Support Services

Guidance Counselors 2,00 2,00 2.00 200 2.00 ERUH 3.00 3,00 300

Lilrarians 1.00 2.00 2,00 2,00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

I'sychelogists 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.04 1.00 1.0G

Speegh nnd Lanpuage Patholagists 2.00 200 2,00 2,00 2.00 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00

Nurse 1.00 i.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.60 1.00

Aides 5,00 500 2.00 9,00 2.00 9.00 9.00 2.00 2.00
Administration

Etementnry 2,00 2,00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.50 3.00 00

High School 2,00 2,00 2,00 2.00 200 2.00 2.00 2,00 2.00

Central Office 2.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Secrelnrinl 7.50 7.50 §.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

Technology 1.00 1.00 1.50 1.50 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00 1.0¢
Fisenl Services

Administration 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00 1.00 .08 1.00 1.0 1.0

Clerks 2.00 2.00 2.00 2,00 2.00 2.00 2,00 2.00 2.00
Operation ol Plant

Custodinns §.00 7.50 7.50 7.50 2.00 9.00 10.50 11.00 11.00

Maintenance 1,00 1,00 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 .00 1.00 1.00
Pupil Transportation

Administration 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00

Bus Drivers 10,00 10.00 10,00 10.00 9.00 13.00 13.00 13.00 13.00

Bus Aides 5.00 5.00 600 5,00 2.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1,00

Vaen Dijvers 200 200 2.00 2,00 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 0.50
Faod Service Mrogron

Llemeninry Cooks 4,00 4.00 4,00 6.00 5.00 5.00 3.00 5.00 6.00

Lhigh Schieol Cooks 3.00 3.00 3.00 400 4.0 4.00 5000 500 4,00
Totals . 135,50 134,00 139.00 138,00 . 13650 13850 14700  149.00 148,50

Rlethwls Using 1.0 Tor each Gull-time employee and 0.50 for cach
pavi-time nixl seasennl emplayee at Nscal vear ¢ind.

(4 Information priur to 2003 is not aveilnbic

Source: Schoo! Disiriet Records
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Berkshire Local School District
Enrollment Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Elementary Junior/High
Year Schools School Total
2011 507 576 1,083
2010 508 569 1,077
2009 495 629 [,124
2008 526 619 1,145
2007 557 690 1,247
2006 556 726 1,282
2005 612 724 1,336
2004 661 720 1,381
2003 675 702 1,377
2002 732 663 1,395

Source: School District Records

4 ™
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\ /

- 836 -




Berlishire Local School District
ACT Composite Scores
Last Ten School Years

Number Number Percent
Schoal of Test of of Berkshire Ohio National
Year Talers Seniors Students Composite Composite Composite
2011 71 54 13148 % 22 21.8 21
2010 58 113 51.33 21.7 21.7 21.1
2009 83 140 59.29 22.6 AW, 21.1
2008 86 122 70.49 22.6 21.7 21.1
2007 67 119 56.30 224 2[.6 21.2
2006 74 118 62.71 21.8 215 21.1
2005 78 105 74.29 20.7 21.4 20.9
2004 75 115 65.22 20.5 214 20.9
2003 66 103 64.08 22,] 214 20.8
2002 54 96 56.25 229 214 20.8
4 ™

Total Seniors vs. ACT Test Takers
160 -

120 W *_‘/.\‘
8 o

40
20
0 T ¥ T I . 1 T I T T 1
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
e={==Total Seniors = = Test Takers
\ S
Source: High School Guidance Office,

Berkshire Local School District
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Berkshire Local School District
SAT Composite Scores
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Number
of
School Senior Berkshire Ohio National
Year Test Takers Verbal Verbal Verbal
2011 4 480 501 501
2010 4 510 537 502
2009 6 560 526 502
2008 n/a n/a 534 502
2007 119 573 536 502
2006 [18 570 535 503
2005 105 571 539 508
2004 L5 575 538 508
2003 103 565 536 507
2002 96 526 533 504

Source:  High School Guidance Office, Berkshire Local School District

n/a - Berleshire Local School District SAT information was not available
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Berlshire Ohio National

Math Math Math
520 516 516
520 546 515
530 533 5E5
n/a 544 515
568 542 515
560 544 518
555 543 520
574 542 518
539 541 519
503 540 516
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Berkshire Local School District
Average Number of Students per Teacher
Last Ten School Years

Fiscal Berkshire State
Year Average Average
2011 15.0 19.1
2010 14.8 19.1
2009 154 19.1
2008 15.3 18.6
2007 16.6 19.6
2000 16.2 18.6
2005 15.5 18.5
2004 15.9 18.5
2003 15.6 16.5
2002 15.5 16.9

Source: Ohio Department of Education, EMIS Reports
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